
 
 

 

 
 
To: Councillor Milne, Convener; and Councillors Boulton, Cameron (substituting for 

Councillor Corall), Finlayson, Grant, Greig (substituting for Councillor Delaney), 
Jaffrey, Lawrence, MacGregor, McCaig, Jean Morrison MBE and Thomson. 
  
Also (as local members):- Councillors Crockett, Malik, Malone and Samarai. 
 

 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN, 22 August 2013 
 

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT SUB COMMITTEE (VISITS) 

 

 The Members of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT SUB COMMITTEE 
(VISITS) are requested to meet at the Town House on THURSDAY, 29 AUGUST 2013 at 
9.00am. 
 

 
 
 

 
JANE G. MACEACHRAN 

HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

 WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF APPROVAL 

 

1 Hopetoun Grange, Land to North of Bucksburn - Proposed development for No.65 
residential houses including infrastructure and landscaping  (Pages 1 - 64) 
 

2 Land adjacent to North Deeside Road, Pittengullies Brae - Erection of 32No. unit 
residential development with ancillary site works and landscaping  (Pages 65 - 96) 
 

3 Land adjacent to North Deeside Road, Pittengullies Brae - Erection of 8No. unit 
residential development with ancillary site works and landscaping  (Pages 97 - 
122) 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

4 Edgehill House, North Deeside Road, Milltimber - Replacement of existing house 
and construction of 5No. additional dwellings with associated infrastructure, 
improved accesses and tree protection works  (Pages 123 - 150) 
 

 
 

 
 
Note: (One) The Planning Officials in attendance on the visits can be contacted by mobile  
                     phone, the number is :- 07802 323986. 
          (Two) The transport for the visits will depart the Town House from the Broad Street           
                     entrance at 9.00am prompt. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Martin 
Allan, tel. (52)3057 or email mallan@aberdeencity.gov.uk or Martyn Orchard, tel. 
(52)3097 or email morchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 



 
HOPETOUN GRANGE, "LAND TO NORTH 
OF"BUCKSBURN 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT FOR 65 
RESIDENTIAL HOUSES INCLUDING 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND LANDSCAPING    
 
For: Persimmon Homes & Rowett Research 
Institute 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P130029 
Application Date:       09/01/2013 
Officer :                     Jane Forbes 
Ward : Dyce/Bucksburn/Danestone(B Crockett/G 
Lawrence/N MacGregor/G Samarai) 

Advert  : Can't notify neighbour(s) 
Advertised on: 23/01/2013 
Committee Date: 22 August 2013 
Community Council :  
 

 

 RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Willingness to approve, subject to conditions, but to withhold the issue of 
the consent document until the applicant has entered into a legal 
agreement with the Council to secure the identified developer contributions 
towards primary education, community facilities, recreation, core path 
networks and the strategic transport fund.  
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



DESCRIPTION 
The application site lies immediately to the west of Hopecroft Avenue and to the 
north of Hopetoun Grange, with the main A96 (Aberdeen/Inverurie Trunk Road), 
lying some 90 metres north of the northern site boundary.  The site, which slopes 
downwards from south to north, with a 15 metre change in gradient levels, 
extends to an area of 3.3 hectares and comprises land which has previously 
been in agricultural use but is currently lying fallow.  There are mature deciduous 
trees (mainly beech), all subject to a Tree Preservation Order (TPO 19), along 
the southern and western boundaries, which, along with the eastern boundary, 
are delineated by traditional drystane dykes. An unsurfaced track which is 
currently overgrown in part, lies just beyond the western boundary of the site, and 
extends the length of the site from north to south, providing a pedestrian link 
between the A96 and Hopetoun Grange.  The surrounding area is characterised 
by residential properties immediately to the south and east, along Hopetoun 
Grange and Hopecroft Avenue respectively.  Immediately to the north of the site 
is a grass bank of between 8 to 10 metres in width, and beyond this and at a 
lower ground level is a lay-by of approximately 125 metres in length which is 
accessed directly from the northbound carriageway of the A96.  To the west of 
the site, and beyond the aforementioned unsurfaced track lies an area of 
agricultural land extending to some 106 hectares, identified in the Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan as an Opportunity Site (OP30) for 1940 homes.  
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
Ref A5/1536 – Proposal for detailed planning consent for the erection of 40 
houses on part of the current application site (2.75 ha) at Hopecroft was 
submitted in August 2005.  At this stage the application site was still zoned under 
GB1 (Green Belt), and on this basis the proposal was considered to be contrary 
to structure plan and local plan policy, resulting in a Development Plan Departure 
Hearing being held in December 2005.  The planning application was 
subsequently considered by the Planning Committee on 19 January 2006, at 
which point the Committee resolved to express a willingness to approve the 
application, subject to conditions and an appropriate legal agreement, and for the 
application to be forwarded to the Scottish Ministers.  The applicants withdrew 
the application in February 2008.  
 
Ref 12/1283 – Proposal of application notice acknowledged on 18 September 
2012 for the ‘erection of residential units including roads, infrastructure and 
landscaping’.  
 
Ref 12/1578 – An Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) screening opinion 
request for proposed residential development at Hopecroft, on land to the north 
of Hopetoun Grange, was responded to on 5 December 2012, outlining that an 
EIA would not be required for the proposed development.  
 
PROPOSAL 
Detailed planning permission is sought for the construction of a residential 
development comprising 65 dwellings on a site which extends to some 3.3 
hectares and includes 2 storey detached and 2 storey cottage flatted properties 
with associated infrastructure and landscaping.  The proposal is categorised as a 
major development in terms of the ‘Hierarchy of Development’ Regulations.   
 
 
 Page 2



There would be 5 detached 3 bedroom houses, 18 detached 4 bedroom houses, 
18 detached 5 bedroom houses, 8 detached 6 bedroom houses and 16 flats (2 
bedroom) which are accommodated within blocks of 4 properties.  The 16 flats 
would provide a level of 25% affordable housing on site. 
 
A variety of house types are proposed but all would be two storeys in height. 
External materials would be a variety of stone and dry dash render with colours 
to be agreed. Roof coverings would be of Redland slate grey roof tiles.   
 
The main vehicular access to the site would be taken from Hopetoun Grange with 
houses largely located around the perimeter of the site, but with the exception of 
a small group of houses lying adjacent to a central area of open space which 
extends to an area of approximately 1180m².  A shared surface loops around this 
central area, with some of the houses being served by shared driveways. 12 of 
the 13 houses located along Hopetoun Grange would front onto this road, with 3 
shared driveways serving the 12 houses.  A footpath/cycle corridor would provide 
an access link from Hopetoun Grange into the site, and would continue across 
the open space area and beyond to the northern end of the site, providing the 
opportunity to link with existing pedestrian routes to the east and west of the site.  
 
The proposal includes arrangements for the treatment of surface water arising 
from the development, through the provision of a sustainable urban drainage 
system (SUDS) basin within the north-western corner of the site.   
 
Supporting Documents 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -    
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=130029  
On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 

• Design and Access Statement 

• Drainage Impact Assessment 

• Pre-application Consultation Report 

• Transport Assessment 

• Tree Survey 

• Tree Protection Plan and Proposed Landscaping 

• Habitat Survey 

• Road and Air Traffic Noise Report 
 
A Planning Brief was also submitted in respect of the Hopecroft (OP20) site. The 
Planning Brief was initially presented to Development Management Sub-
committee on 6 December 2012.  The Committee approved the 
recommendations to (a) approve the Hopecroft Planning Brief as interim planning 
advice; and (b) for officers to implement the process to ratify the Planning Brief 
as Supplementary Guidance, with this process including a 4 week public 
consultation.  A total of 12 representations were received during the consultation 
period and these were addressed in a summary of representations included as 
part of the subsequent report submitted to Development Management Sub- 
 
 

Page 3



Committee on 15 February 2013, at which point it was approved with the 
following additions (a) that the airport noise contours should be based on 
Guidance released in 2011 and (b) to note that detailed concern expressed by 
local residents will be taken into account once individual planning applications 
are received by the Planning Authority.  The Hopecroft Planning Brief was finally 
ratified by the Scottish Government on 14 June 2013, and at this point was 
formally adopted by this planning authority as Supplementary Guidance.  
 
The main issues raised within the representations received related to density, 
impact on green belt, vehicular access off Hopetoun Grange, creation of wildlife 
corridors, traffic generation, noise, impact on trees, boundary treatments, 
possible loss of access to existing lane, need to improve cycle/pedestrian 
access. 
 
These issues have all been addressed through the evaluation of this detailed 
planning application.  
 
PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATION 
A proposal of application notice for the proposed development was submitted in 
September 2012 (Ref 12/1283), resulting in pre-application consultation being 
undertaken between the applicant and the local community, as required for 
applications falling within the category of major developments as defined in the 
‘Hierarchy of Development Regulations’.  The consultation involved a meeting 
with Newhills & Bucksburn Community Council on 27 September 2012 and public 
meetings which took place in the Beacon Community Centre on 17 October 2012 
and 20 November 2012.    
 
The main issues raised by the Community Council related to: 
 

• Connectivity with existing adjoining development.  Vehicle and 
pedestrian/cycle links have been incorporated into the development. 

• Footpath fronting onto Hopetoun Grange.  A new footpath extending the 
length of the southern boundary of the development has been included in 
the proposal. 

• Impact of noise from the A96 on the northern boundary from the A96. An 
acoustic fence and natural screening are proposed along the northern 
boundary which faces onto A96 and acoustically attenuated ventilators 
fitted to the properties fronting the northern boundary.  

• Retention of existing trees.  As outlined below, whilst trees will be lost as a 
result of the proposed development, a condition requiring an appropriate 
level of replanting has been attached to this application.  

 
A total of 27 people attended the initial public event on 17th October, with none 
attending the follow-up meeting on 20th November.  The main issues raised and 
how these issues have been addressed is detailed below:  
 

• Concerns regarding proposed link between Hopecroft Drive and the 
proposed development.  These concerns related primarily to vehicular 
access, and in this respect the potential for linking the proposed site is for 
pedetrians or cyclists.  

 
 

Page 4



• Concerns about introducing access from individual dwellings onto 
Hopetoun Grange.  Whilst this access arrangement remains part of the 
proposal, the Roads Projects Team raised no concerns with this aspect of 
the development. 

• Important link along lane lies to the west of the site which should be 
retained, and potentially improved.  A condition has been attached to the 
granting of consent for this application which secures the upgrading of this 
existing path. 

• Possibility of existing bus route servicing the area.  The Transport 
Statement has demonstrated that public transport links are adequately 
provided for the proposal. 

• Concerns regarding loss of trees along Hopetoun Grange.  Whilst 
approval of the application will lead to the loss of trees on site, a tree 
survey has highlighted the poor condition of some of the trees on site, and 
it is felt that appropriate conditions have been attached which will secure a 
satisfactory level of replanting. 

• Introduction of “stand-off” area with trees and shrubs between Hopecroft 
Avenue and proposed development  which may lead to access and safety 
issues.  This narrow strip of ground incorporates landscaping, which once 
mature, will very much reduce ease of access. 

• Concerns relating to the impact of noise from road and aircraft on 
proposed development, and insufficient assessment of these issues. A 
road and aircraft traffic noise report has been submitted with the 
application, and accepted by Environmental Services.  Conditions have 
been attached which ensure road noise issues are sufficiently addressed, 
and for additional survey measurements to be undertaken and appropriate 
noise attenuation incorporated into the fabric of the buildings, if the survey 
results deem this to be necessary. 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO SUB-COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the Sub-committee because the Council has 
received more than 5 letters of objection in relation to the developmet proposal. 
Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
Roads Project Team – No objection to the application.  Request that appropriate 
conditions be applied including in relation to vehicular access, pedestrian and 
cycle access, upgrading of existing bus stops, drainage and appropriate strategic 
transport fund contribution.  Their comments can be summarised as follows: 
 

• The site is proposed to have one vehicular access from Hopecroft Grange.  
Under normal circumstances it would be a requirement for a site of this 
size to provide two accesses.  However the layout of the site is such that 
there are two routes to the majority of dwellings.  The main access road 
from Hopetoun Grange into the development will be constructed to a 
sufficient width to allow a fire tender to pass parked vehicles.  The 
applicant has also agreed to construct the combined foot and cycleway 
with greater than normal strength in order to allow emergency service 
vehicles to make use of it should that be necessary. 

 
 

Page 5



• Driveways have been located on Hopetoun Grange in line with junction 
spacing requirements. 

• A new footway will be constructed along the site boundary to Hopetoun 
Grange to an adoptable standard.  At the same time, a uniform 
carriageway width will be provided on Hopetoun Grange matching that on 
the rest of the street to the east.  Pedestrian access into the site from 
Hopetoun Grange will be delivered in two locations, both of which will be 
constructed to be combined foot and cycleways.  The infrastructure along 
the access road will extend to the site boundary linking in the future to the 
development in the west. 

• Pedestrian access to the A96 to the north is important and the applicant 
has agreed to upgrade the lane to the west of the site to an adoptable 
standard between the A96 and the point that it interacts with what will 
become the spine road to the future development to the west.   

• Parking should be provided in accordance with the Councils parking 
standards.  All previously highlighted concerns with regard to the 
positioning of car parking spaces have been resolved. 

• Reference is made within the Transport Statement (TS) to the public 
transport services on Sclattie Park and the A96, although the TS shows 
the site to be better connected by public transport than it actually is.  No 
consideration has been given to public transport journeys other than those 
on direct routes from the development. 

• The provision of the pedestrian and cycle access to the A96 along the lane 
to the west of the site is essential in residents being able to gain access to 
the public transport services on the A96.  Cycle accessibility has not been 
accurately assessed, and a cycle isochrone has not been provided which 
would show the area that would  be considered to be within cycle 
accessibility.  The residential streets within Hopetoun and Hopecroft would 
be considered to be acceptable for cycling.  Access to the cycle route on 
the north side of the A96 would be achievable from the crossing point on 
the A96 close to the junction with Sclattie Park. While the services on 
Sclattie Park are outwith the 400m walk distance stipulated in national 
guidance they will still form an important connection. 

• As the proposed development is within an area allocated for residential or 
mixed use within the Aberdeen City Local Development Plan a 
contribution will be required to the Strategic Transport Fund (STF). 

• The current drainage proposals require access under the trunk road to 
connect the surface water and under third party land to connect the foul 
sewage.  I would ask that conditions requiring these permissions to be in 
place prior to work commencing. 

 
Environmental Health – No objection to the application.  Request that 
conditions be applied to any consent to (a) protect the residents of certain 
properties from traffic noise; and (b) undertake a noise measurement 
assessment over no less than 3 days on site (Monday to Friday) in order to 
establish whether material adjustments need to be incorporated into the 
development build in order to address aircraft noise.  
 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) – Response received - no 
objections provided the following comments are addressed: 
 

Page 6



• The basin is constructed as per the proposed design and capable of 
retaining flows up to and including the 1 in 200 year storm event plus 
climate change 

• The discharge rate does not exceed the greenfield flows as per the design 
calculations 

• Aberdeen City Council Flooding is consulted during the construction of the 
connection into the watercourse to allow inspection work to be carried out 
if required  

 
Education, Culture & Sport (Archaeology) –  Response received.  Request 
condition relating to implementation of archaeological works. 
 
Developer Contributions Team – Appropriate level of affordable housing 
secured on site (25%), in addition to agreement having been reached on 
contributions for primary education, community facilities, recreation, core path 
networks and the strategic transport fund. 
 
Community Council – No response received. 
 
SEPA – Response received.  No objections to the proposal provided the 
Drainage Assessment Issue 1 (dated 4 July 2013), which includes information on 
the construction phase SUDS, is approved as part of the  planning consent. 
 
Aberdeen International Airport – Response received.  No objection to the 
proposal provided the following conditions were applied: 
 

• Controlling the height of cranes operating on site; 

• The submission of a detailed soft and water landscaping scheme with 
attention to species choice with the aim of discouraging birds to the 
proposed tree and shrub planting; 

• Submission of details on the SUDS scheme including measures to avoid 
the attraction of birds; 

• Ensuring any proposed lighting scheme, including for lighting to be utilised 
during construction, is of an appropriate design, with no light spill above 
the horizontal.  

 
Aberdeen International Airport also commented that based on the 2011 noise 
contours, part of the area of the proposed development fell within the 57db LEQ 
contour and would be subjected to aircraft noise during the day and night, and on 
this basis the application should be considered against Policy H8 in the Local 
Development Plan.  In addition to this, they drew attention to the Aberdeen 
International Airport Master Plan, published in January 2013, which details future 
indicative noise contours for 2020 and 2040. 
 
Transport Scotland – Response received.  No objections to the proposal 
provided the following conditions are applied: 
 

• There shall be no means of direct vehicular access to the trunk road. 
Pedestrian access to the trunk road shall be restricted to the existing 
footpath immediately to the west of the site. 

Page 7



• The Applicant shall liaise with Transport Scotland and its Operating 
Company in regard to the timing, traffic management and standard of 
construction required for the pipeline crossing under the trunk road. 

 
Scottish Water – Response received.  No objections. 
 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
A total of 24 letters of representation have been received. 18 letters were 
submitted within the original consultation response period, and 6 further letters 
submitted as a result of an extended period of consultation on the Transport 
Statement.  An additional period of 14 days of consultation was afforded to all 
those who had commented on transport issues within their original letter of 
representation, allowing them to raise any issues specifically relating to the detail 
contained within the Transport Statement which had not been available to view 
on the planning website during the initial consultation period.  The objections 
raised have been summarised below and relate to the following matters:- 
 

• Overdevelopment of the site 

• Adverse impact on existing road network which is already congested 

• Unacceptable level of car parking provision 

• Impact on existing busy junction at Hopetoun Terrace 

• Inaccuracies in the Transport Statement including in relation to public 
transport accessibility 

• Impact on road and pedestrian safety as a result of increased traffic 
generation and manoeuvring  

• Adverse impact on future residents as a result of aircraft and road noise 

• Location of proposed SUDS would adversely impact on existing dwellings 
as a result of its proximity and likely generation of unpleasant odours 

• Proposed house design is not in-keeping with that of existing properties 
within the surrounding area 

• Inaccuracy and uncertainty concerning the eastern boundary line of the 
site 

• Overshadowing of existing properties located on Hopecroft Drive 

• House types are too large and would lead to overlooking 

• Impact on  existing views 

• Proposed development would have an adverse impact on local services 

• Effect on school capacity 

• Loss of protected trees and other natural habitat 

• Adverse impact of proposed development on existing tree roots and 
canopies 

• Adverse impact on wildlife 

• Inadequate consultation process 

• Proposal ignores results of Public Enquiry of 2006 

• Proposed development would lead to destruction of the Green Belt 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



PLANNING POLICY 
National Policy and Guidance  
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) – This is the statement of Scottish Government 
policy on land use planning, and includes the Government’s core principles for 
the operation of the planning system and concise subject planning policies.  The 
general policy relating to sustainable development and subject policies relating to 
Open Space and Physical Activity, Landscape and Natural Heritage, Transport 
and Housing are all relevant material considerations. 

 
Designing Places is the statement that sets out the Government’s expectations of 
the planning system to deliver high standards of design in development projects 
and is a relevant material consideration. 
 
Designing Streets (A Policy Statement for Scotland) is a relevant material 
consideration which seeks to promote pedestrian friendly developments. 
 
PAN 77 (Designing Safer Places) highlights the positive role that planning can 
play in helping to create attractive, well-managed environments which help to 
discourage anti-social behaviour. It aims to ensure that new development can be 
located and designed in a way that deters such behaviour as poorly designed 
surroundings can create feelings of hostility, anonyminity and alienation and can 
have significant social, economic and environmental costs. 
 
PAN 2/2010 (Affordable Housing and Housing Land Audits). This document 
outlines how the planning system can facilitate the development of affordable 
homes by way of supplying a mixture of tenures which are affordable and are of a 
high standard of design in order to contribute to the creation of sustainable, 
mixed communities.  
 
PAN 65 (Planning and Open Space) provides advice on the role of the planning 
system in protecting and enhancing open spaces and providing high quality new 
spaces. 
 
PAN 1/2011 (Planning and Noise). This Planning Advice Note (PAN) provides 
advice on the role of the planning system in helping to prevent and limit the 
adverse effects of noise. 
 
Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan 
 
The Structure Plan sets out the following key objectives for the growth of the City 
and Aberdeenshire: 
 
Sustainable mixed communities - to make sure that new development meets the 
needs of the whole community, both now and in the future and makes the area a 
more attractive place for residents and businesses to move to. 
 
Accessibility - to make sure that all new development contributes towards 
reducing the need to travel and encourages people to walk, cycle or use public 
transport by making these attractive choices. 
 
 
 Page 9



Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
Policy I1 (Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions)  
Development must be accompanied by the infrastructure, services and facilities 
required to support new or expanded  communities and the scale and type of 
developments proposed.  Where development either individually or cumulatively 
will place additional demands on community facilities or infrastructure that would 
necessitate new facilities or exacerbate deficiencies in existing provision, the 
Council will require the developer to meet or contribute to the cost of providing or 
improviing such infrastructure or facilities.   
 
Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development)  
New developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been 
taken to minimise the traffic generated. 
 
Transport Assessments and Travel Plans will be required  for developments 
which exceed the thresholds set out in the Transport and Accessibility  
Supplementary Guidance.  Planning conditions and / or legal agreements may be 
imposed to bind the targets set out in the Travel Plan and set the arrangements 
for monitoring, enforcement and review.   
 
Maximum car parking standards are set out in Supplementary Guidance on 
Transport and Accessibility and detail the standards that different types of 
development should provide.  
 
Policy D1 (Architecture and Placemaking)  
To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with 
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting.  
Factors such as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation, details, the 
proportions of building elements, together with the spaces around buidlings, 
including streets, squares, open space, landscaping and boundary treatments, 
will be considered in assessing that contribution.   
 
Policy D2 (Design and Amenity)  
In order to ensure the provision of appropriate levels of amenity certain principles 
will be applied, including: 

• Privacy shall be designed into higher density housing. 

• Residential development shall have a public face to a street and a private 
face to an enclosed garden or court. 

• All residents shall have access to sitting-out areas.  This can be provided 
by balconies, private gardens, terraces, communal gardens or other 
means acceptable to the Council. 

• Individual houses within a development shall be designed to make the 
most of opportunities offered by the site for view and sunlight.   

• Development proposals shall include measures to design out crime and 
design in safety. 

• External lighting shall take into account residential amenity and minimise 
light spillage into adjoining areas and the sky. 

 
 
 
 

Page 10



Policy D3 (Sustainable and Active Travel)  
New development will be designed in order to minimise travel by private car, 
improve access to services and promote access to services and promote healthy 
lifestyles by encouraging active travel.  Development will maintain and enhance 
permeability, ensuring that opportunities for sustainable and active travel are both 
protected and improved.  Access to, and movement within and between, new and 
existing developments will prioritise transport modes in the following order – 
walking, cycling, public transport, car and other motorised vehicles.   
 
Street layouts will reflect the principles of Designing Streets and will meet the 
minimum distances to services as set out in Supplementary Guidance on 
Transport and Accessibility, helping to achieve maximum levels of accessibility 
for communities to employment, essential services and areas of recreation. 
 
Existing access rights, including core paths, rights of way and paths within the 
wider network will be protected and enhanced.  Where development proposals 
impact on the access network, the principle of the access must be maintained 
through the provision of suitable alternative routes.    
 
Policy D6 (Landscape)  
Development will not be acceptable unless it avoids: 

• significantly adversely affecting landscape character and elements which 
contribute to, or provide, a distinct ‘sense of place’ which point to being 
either in or around Aberdeen or a particular part of it; 

• disturbance, loss or damage to important recreation, wildlife or woodland 
resources or to the physical links between them; 

• sprawling onto important or necessary green spaces or buffers between 
places or communities with individual identities, and those which can 
provide opportunities for countryside activities. 

 
Policy H1 (Residential Areas)  
The site has been zoned under Policy H1 (Residential Area), where the Council 
seeks to retain the residential character and amenity of the area.  Proposals for 
new residential development and householder development will be approved in 
principle, provided it 

• does not constitute overdevelopment;  

• does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of the 
surrounding area; and 

• does not result in the loss of valuable and valued areas of open space. 
 
Policy H4 (Housing Mix)  
Housing developments of larger than 50 units are required to achieve an 
appropriate mix of dwelling types and sizes, in line with a masterplan, reflecting 
the accommodation requirements of specific groups, in particular families and 
older people.  This mix is in addition to affordable housing contributions. 
 
Policy H8 – Housing and Aberdeen Airport 
Applications for residential development under or in the vicinity of aircraft flight 
paths, where the noise levels are in excess of 57dB LAeq (using the summer 16-
hour dB LAeq measurement) will be refused, due to the inability to create an 
appropriate level of residential amenity, and to safeguard the future operation of 
Aberdeen Airport. 

Page 11



 
Policy H3 (Density)  
The City Council will seek an appropriate density of development on all housing 
allocations and windfall sites.  All residential developments of over one hectare 
must: 

• meet a minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare (net).  Net dwelling 
density  includes those areas which will be developed for housing and 
directly associated uses, including access roads within the site, garden 
ground and incidental open space; 

• have consideration of the site’s characteristics and those of the 
surrounding area; 

• create an attractive residential environment and safeguard living 
conditions within the development; and 

• consider providing higher densities in the City Centre, around local 
centres, and public transport nodes. 

 
Policy NE4 (Open Space Provision in New Development)  
The City Council will require the provision of at least 2.8 hectares per 1000 
people of meaningful and useful public open space in new residential 
development.  Communal or public open space should be provided in all 
residential  developments, including those on brownfield sites.   
 
Policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) 
There is a presumption against all activities and development that will result in 
the loss of or damage to established trees and woodlands that contribute 
signficantly to nature conservation, landscape character or local amenity, 
including ancient and semi-natural woodland which is irreplaceable. 
 
Policy NE6 (Flooding and Drainage) 
Where more than 10 homes or greater than 100m² floorspace is proposed, the 
developer will be required to submit a Drainage Impact Assessment.  Surface 
water drainage associated with development must: 

• be the most appropriate available in terms of SUDS; and 

• avoid flooding and pollution both during and after construction. 
 
Policy NE9 (Access and Informal Recreation) 
New development should not compromise the integrity of existing or potential 
recreational opportunities including access rights, core paths, other paths and 
rights of way.  Wherever appropriate, developments should include new or 
improved provision for public access, permeability and/or links to green space for 
recreation and active travel. 
 
Policy R7 (Low and Zero Carbon Buildings) 
States that all new buildings, in order to meet with building regulations energy 
requirements, must install low and zero-carbon generating technology to reduce 
the predicted carbon dioxide emissions by at least 15% below 2007 building 
standards.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



Supplementary Guidance  
 
The Hopecroft Planning Brief was ratified by the Scottish Government on 14 June 
2013 resulting in its formal adoption as Supplementary Guidance from this date.  
 
The following supplementary guidance documents are also of relevance: 
 

• Delivering Identified Projects through a Strategic Transport Fund 
(December 2011) 

• Affordable Housing (March 2012) 

• Low and Zero Carbon Buildings (March 2012) 

• Transport and Accessibility (March 2012) 

• Waste Management Requirements in New Developments (March 2012) 

• Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual (March 2012) 
 

EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Principle of Residential Use 
The Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP) identifies the application site as 
Policy H1 (Residential Areas) and as an opportunity site (OP20) for 30 homes.  
The proposal is for a development of 65 dwellings on the site, and as such is in 
accordance with the local development plan allocation of the site for residential 
use, albeit at a higher density. The Hopecroft Planning Brief, which was based on 
the principle of the site being developed for residential use with a capacity for 
around 65 units was approved by the Development Management Sub-Committee 
with the request that the following additions be made: (a) that the airport noise 
contours should be based on Guidance released in 2011; and (b) to note that 
detailed concern expressed by local residents will be taken into account once 
individual planning applications are received by the Planning Authority.  The 
Planning Brief was subsequently ratified as Supplementary Guidance to the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan by the Scottish Government on 14 June 
2013.  
 
Policy H1 (Residential Areas) states that a proposal for new development will be 
approved in principle if it does not constitute over development; does not have an 
unacceptable impact on the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and 
does not result in the loss of valuable and valued areas of open space.   The 
application site was previously in agricultural use, and is now allocated for 
residential use, and as a result would not categorised as open space for the 
purposes of this policy  On this basis alone, as the proposal would have no 
impact on existing open space, the principle of residential development is 
acceptable.  In terms of assessing any likely impact which the proposed 
development may have on the character and amenity of the surrounding area 
and whether the proposal would constitute overdevelopment, these matters are 
examined below.  
 
 

Page 13



Density 
Part of the criteria for establishing whether a development proposal complies with 
Policy H1 (Residential Areas) is based on whether such a proposal constitutes 
over-development. Taking into account existing policy expectations in terms of 
density of development outlined in both the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure 
Plan and Aberdeen Local Development Plan (Policy H3: Density), which state 
that all residential development of over one hectare should achieve a minimum 
density of 30 dwellings per hectare, whilst also taking into consideration the 
average density of the surrounding area, where a density of 20-35 units per 
hectare is typical, it is found that the 65 residential units proposed for this 3.3ha 
site, equating to 20 units per hectare, would not constitute over development.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, it is worth noting that in establishing whether a 
proposed density of development is appropriate and may be considered 
acceptable for a specific site, the minimum levels sought through Policy H3 (ie 30 
units per hectare) cannot be applied in isolation.  There is a clear need for the 
level of proposed development on a site to be considered within the context of 
the surrounding area and its particular characteristics, and matters such as the 
relationship between buildings and the level of open space provision on site are 
also relevant considerations in establishing this.  So whilst it is acknowledged 
that the 65 residential units proposed for the development is well above the 
current site allocation for 30 homes, this level of development is nevertheless 
considerably below policy expectations.  However, on the basis that the 
suggested figure of 30 units for this site was allocated at a time when the impact 
of the airport noise contour line level meant there were more stringent restrictions 
on the development capacity of the site, and these restrictions have now been 
significantly reduced as a result of a change to this noise contour line, with it now 
just clipping the very extremity of the site, it is considered that the 65 units being 
proposed for the site, which was also the level of development supported by the 
Planning Brief for the site, is a level of development which is both appropriate in 
terms of the context of the site and sufficiently compliant with the relevant policy.  
 
Layout, Design, Scale and Form of Development 
‘Designing Places’ is a  statement which sets out the Government’s expectations 
of the planning system in delivering high standards of design, and outlines the 
criteria which it considers necessary to achieve a successful place, including 
being ‘distinctive’, ‘safe and pleasant’, ‘easy to get to and move around’ and 
‘welcoming’.  The layout and design of the proposed development demonstrate 
that these criteria have been suitably addressed, with the result that a relatively 
high quality design and layout has been achieved.   
 
The original layout proposed for the site, which largely met with the expectations 
of the indicative layout of the Planning Brief, has been amended since the initial 
submission of the planning application, as a direct result of consultation 
responses and officer discussion.  This has largely resulted in a block of 
residential units being set further back from the northern boundary of the site; a 
change in location of the SUDS basin to the north-western corner of the site; and 
the reconfiguration of the open space area in order to increase the number of 
dwellings fronting onto this area.   
 
 
 

Page 14



The proposed development layout is such that along the southern boundary it 
fronts onto existing dwellings along Hopetoun Grange, thus creating an 
appropriate link between existing and new development, and a welcome and 
open frontage onto this main access road.  Proposed access to the site will allow 
ease of movement, with openings for both pedestrian and vehicular access 
created along the southern boundary, and the upgrading of an existing 
pedestrian link to the north of the site and the A96.  An area of open space 
extending to approximately 1180m² is proposed within a central location of the 
site, with dwellings fronting onto this open space and footpaths providing 
appropriate pedestrian access both from within the site and beyond, ensuring the 
delivery of a safe and pleasant area, in accordance with PAN 77 (Designing 
Safer Places). In addition to this, less formal areas of open space have been 
introduced throughout the site.  These include an area lying to the north of the 
site within which the SUDS basin will be located, and where this wider area of 
open space extends across the full width of the northern boundary of the site to a 
depth of between 15 to 55 metres.  In this respect the proposal is considered to 
be in accordance with PAN 65 (Planning and Open Space) and Policy NE4 
(Open Space Provision in New Development), and also with Policy NE9 (Access 
and Informal Recreation) which seeks the inclusion of new or improved provision 
of public access in new developments, and also to improve existing permeability 
or links to green space for recreation and active travel. 
 
The proposed development achieves an acceptable mix of house types and 
sizes, with a total of 11 house types being accommodated on site, ranging in size 
from the 2 bedroom cottage flatted properties which constitute the affordable 
housing contribution, to 6 bedroom detached family dwellings.  The proposal is 
considered to be in accordance with Policy H4 (Housing Mix), which seeks to 
encourage a range of sizes and house types for development proposals 
exceeding 50 units. 
 
Although the proposed development may not be particularly distinctive, the 
design and layout are nevertheless considered to be appropriate in terms of the 
surrounding residential area.  Given that the existing dwellings in this 
neighbourhood are mainly dating from the 1960’s and 1970’s, the design detail of 
the proposed development will undoubtedly complement rather than match that 
of the existing properties, however the layout and form of development has 
generally taken account of existing development and is considered appropriate in 
this regard, with suitably spaced development, and well proportioned garden 
ground. Amendments to the original proposed finish of the dwellings which 
included a brick facing to many of the properties have been secured, thus 
ensuring more appropriate materials are incorporated into the build, including dry 
dash render and walls, gables or other small-scale features in stone. Conditions 
have been attached to deal with the detail of the boundary treatments and the 
landscaping of the site. Taking the above into account it is considered that the 
proposal is generally compliant with Policy D1 (Architecture and Placemaking). 
 
The proposed development is deemed to be in accordance with Policy D2 
(Design and Amenity). The layout and design of the proposed dwellings includes 
the provision of private garden ground to the rear of all properties within the site.  
The properties located along the northernmost section of the site front  
 
 

Page 15



northwards, thus achieving optimal sunlight within their private garden ground 
which lies to the south.  The orientation of the remaining development on site is 
generally considered to be appropriate, allowing for properties to benefit from an 
acceptable level of sunlight. The layout of the site is such that all properties 
achieve a public frontage onto either a street or footpath/cycleway, along with a 
private face to a garden, and have incorporated boundary enclosures, the detail 
of which is to be submitted and agreed through conditions.  A condition has also 
been attached which seeks suitable external lighting provision within the site, with 
the detail taking into account any restriction to such lighting as a result of the 
proximity of the site to Aberdeen International Airport.  
 
Although specific information on the installation of low and zero-carbon 
generating technology which will adequately reduce the predicted carbon dioxide 
emissions has not been submitted by the developer, an appropriate condition has 
been attached requiring the installation of such technology, and this would need 
to be compliant with Policy R7 (Low and Zero Carbon Buildings).  
 
Visual Impact of the Development 
The application site which was previously in agricultural use, is currently lying 
fallow.  Whilst the loss of views for existing residents within the surrounding area 
is not a material planning consideration, it is nevertheless apparent that the 
proposed development which comprises 2 storey dwellings across the site will 
have a significant visual impact, given its previous use and zoning within the 
green belt. However, the overall visual impact of the proposed development will 
be somewhat reduced as a result of the drop in ground levels between the 
southern and northern boundaries, with the 2 storey properties lying towards the 
northern section of the site lying at a significantly lower level than those towards 
the south, due to the 15 metre drop in ground levels between the southern and 
northern boundaries.   
 
The site does currently benefit from screening, with a mix of mature trees, 
hedges and drystane dykes along all four boundaries.  Whilst the proposed 
layout of development and access to the site will lead to the loss of some of the 
trees and a section of dyke to the south, this will nevertheless allow for the new 
development to better connect with existing dwellings along Hopetoun Grange, 
and appropriate landscaping will be introduced along this boundary.  All existing 
trees will remain along the northern boundary, thus ensuring a suitable level of 
screening is retained between the development and the A96, with additional 
screening measures including an acoustic fence and additional planting being 
introduced along this same boundary.  Whilst there will be some tree loss along 
the western boundary, it is considered that an acceptable level of mature trees 
will remain, and an appropriate level of replacement planting has been secured 
as part of the landscaping scheme, all of which will ensure that in time, the 
development will blend more successfully into its setting, ensuring that the 
general character of the area is retained.   
 
Impact on Trees 
As outlined above, the site is bound by mature trees, mainly along the northern, 
southern and western boundaries. All trees within the application site are 
currently protected under Tree Preservation Order No 19.  A tree survey report  
 
 

Page 16



was submitted in support of the application and the Council’s arboricultural 
planner accepted the conclusions of this report.  It has been found that whilst the 
loss of 40 out of a total of 80 protected trees on site is unfortunate, it is clear that 
given the poor condition of many of the trees, as identified in the tree survey 
report, that a certain number would require removal regardless of the proposed 
development.  Taking this into account, what has been considered to be 
important in evaluating the proposed development, given that the site has been 
identified as suitable for residential development, is the need to ensure that the 
treed nature of the locality is adequately maintained and where possible 
enhanced through the use of appropriate replacement and new tree planting, and 
that development is sited in such a manner as to limit the impact on existing 
trees.  A 15 metre building line offset has been incorporated along the full length 
of the western boundary, which not only ensures an appropriate separation 
distance between the proposed dwellings and the retained and replacement trees 
along this site boundary, thus dealing in part with concerns relating to 
development impacting on tree root protection areas and canopies, but also 
allows the introduction of a wildlife corridor to the rear of these properties.  So 
whilst acknowledging that the proposal may not be fully compliant with Policy 
NE5 (Trees and Woodland) of the ALDP, in terms of the loss of trees on site, it is 
considered that the conditions applied will ensure sufficient protection of the 
mature trees which can be retained on site, and that an appropriate level of 
replacement planting and landscaping is secured across the site, with a suitable 
focus on native species which is in accordance with Scottish Planning Policy on 
‘Landscape and Natural Heritage’.   
 
Traffic Impacts, Access Arrangements and Car Parking 
The proposed development will have one vehicular access off Hopetoun Grange, 
but will include a second loop road within the internal layout of the site.  The main 
access road will terminate midway along the western boundary of the site, 
however the proposed layout is such that it will allow for this road to be continued 
beyond the application site to the west, should there be a requirement for such a 
connection as a result of future development proposals for the neighbouring 
opportunity site (OP 30).  Whilst concerns have been raised with regards the 
likely traffic impact of linking this neighbouring site (OP30) with the application 
site, it should be noted that it is not possible at this stage, in the absence of any 
formal application for development within the aforementioned site, to consider 
what the future traffic implications of linking this road to the west may be.  
 
The internal layout of the site allows for a suitable level of vehicular and 
pedestrian movement, with shared surfaces having been incorporated into the 
road layout thereby promoting a safe environment for pedestrian use; and a clear 
pattern of footpaths/cycle-ways linking throughout the site and beyond to the 
surrounding area, encouraging connections to the wider area.  Attention has 
been given to ensuring permeability to the north and south of the site, thereby 
enabling access to a range of alternative transport modes other than the car, 
including walking, cycling and public transport.   
 
Whilst concerns have been raised with regards creating the main access into the 
site off Hopetoun Grange, in addition to introducing driveway accesses to 
residential properties along this stretch of road, and the resulting traffic  
 
 

Page 17



generation and safety implications, it should be noted that the Roads Projects 
Team have raised no objection with regards traffic generation as a result of the 
proposed development, on the basis that the road network is deemed capable of 
accommodating the additional traffic, and are satisfied that the small number of 
direct driveway accesses onto Hopetoun Grange which are being proposed road 
can be utilised without introducing any safety issues, and that the car parking 
provision for the site is of an acceptable level which meets the appropriate car 
parking standards. 
 
The Roads Projects Team have raised no objection to the proposed 
development, but have nevertheless requested that conditions be attached to any 
planning approval which would include the upgrading of an existing lane to the 
west of the site and the upgrading of bus stop facilities on the A96 and Sclattie 
Park.  
 
Taking the above into account, it is considered that the proposal is in accordance 
with the general principles of ‘Designing Streets’, a government statement which 
seeks to promote pedestrian friendly developments, and also accords with 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP), both in relation to ‘Transport’ policy for new 
development, and ‘Landscape and Natural Heritage’ policy through securing 
improved access opportunities, with new footpath/cycleway links and the 
upgrading of an existing path.  The proposal is meeting the expectations of the 
Structure Plan in terms of ensuring an appropriate level of accessibility for the 
site; and is found to be compliant with Policy D3 (Sustainable and Active Travel) 
and Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development). 
 
Site Drainage and Flooding 
An amended layout for the site has resulted in the SUDS basin moving from the 
north-east to the north-west corner of the site and to a minimum distance of 50 
metres from existing dwellings on Hopecroft Drive, which should address 
concerns raised by neighbouring residents along this road in relation to its 
proximity.  Scottish Water raised no objection to the proposal, and based on the 
detail of the amended Drainage Impact Assessment submitted, SEPA agreed to 
the proposal.   The Roads Projects Team had no objection to the proposed 
drainage arrangements on site but requested that a condition be attached which 
ensured appropriate access arrangements were in place for the drainage 
proposals prior to the commencement of development on site. Similarly, the 
Flooding Team raised no objection provided the drainage arrangements on site 
were in accordance with the detail included in the amended Drainage Impact 
Assessment.  
 
Noise 
A report on road and air traffic noise was submitted in support of the planning 
application.  Based on the findings of that report the Council’s Environmental 
Services Team did not object to the proposal, accepting the basic principle of 
residential development as being appropriate for the site.  They did however 
raise concerns about the potential impact on prospective residents of the 
development from road and aircraft noise sources,  and have recommended that 
2 conditions be applied to any planning approval which would (a) require the 
installation of acoustically attenuated ventilators to the lounge accommodation of  
 
 

Page 18



all cottage flatted properties, in order to mitigate road traffic noise ; and (b) 
require the submission of a 3 day noise measurement survey of aircraft noise on 
the site which would establish whether material adjustments should be 
incorporated into the construction of the dwellings (eg triple glazing, alternative 
insulation methods) which would mitigate noise issues arising from the results of 
this additional survey.  The proposal incorporates the erection of an acoustic 
fence along the northern boundary of the site which will serve as additional 
mitigation for noise generated from the adjacent A96 trunk road.  
 
The Planning Brief had identified the key constraints for the site and the 
proposed development to include the airport noise contour boundary.  The 
original site layout submitted as part of this planning application identified the 
north-eastern corner of the site as falling within the flight path of Aberdeen 
International Airport, where noise levels would be in excess of 57dB LAeq, based 
on the Aberdeen Airport 2006 (actual) noise contours.   
 
However, prior to the Planning Brief being submitted to Development 
Management Sub-committee on 15 February 2013 it had been established that 
the airport noise contours applied to the proposal were incorrect, as more up-to 
date guidance had been issued by the airport in 2011.  The Planning Brief was 
subsequently approved by Members on the proviso that the airport noise 
contours be amended in accordance with those issued by Aberdeen International 
Airport in 2011, and has since been ratified by the Scottish Government on that 
basis.  This change has resulted in the 57 dB LAeq contour line which had 
previously cut across the north-eastern edge of the site falling back to a level 
where it just clips the extremity of the site boundary, and subsequently no longer 
directly impacts on the residential development proposed for the site, with none 
of the residential units falling within the affected area.  
 
Aberdeen International Airport raised no objections to the proposed development 
and whilst commenting that part of the application site fell within the 57dB LAeq 
contour and would be subjected to aircraft noise during the day and night, stated 
that the proposal should be considered against Policy H8 in the local 
development plan.   They also drew attention to Aberdeen International Airport 
Masterplan, published in 2013, which details future indicative noise contours for 
2020 and 2040.  The indicative contours bring the north-eastern section of the 
site back within the 57dB contour line, however in terms of assessing this 
planning application, these levels are based on predicted aircraft movement and 
cannot in themselves form the basis of limiting current development proposals.  
 
It is particularly relevant in terms of assessing this application that the 
abovementioned change to the area of the site directly affected by the noise 
contour line is taken into consideration and on this basis the proposal is 
considered to be compliant with Policy H8 (Housing and Aberdeen Airport) of the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  Furthermore, should the Council’s 
Environmental Team deem that additional noise attenuation is necessary, 
following receipt of a 3 day noise measurement  survey, then such noise 
attenuation measures will be implemented through appropriate construction 
specification.  
 
 
 

Page 19



Whilst acknowledging that the north-eastern extremity of the site lies within 
Aberdeen International Airport’s flight path and the northern boundary fronts onto 
a busy trunk road, with evident noise implications for the residential development 
as a result, it is nevertheless considered that the proposal for residential 
development in this instance is in accordance with the proposed local 
development plan allocation for the site and compliant with Policy H8 (Housing 
and Aberdeen Airport), and suitable mitigation measures have been incorporated 
and may be further amended depending on the results of the above-mentioned 
survey.   
 
Ecological Impact 
An ecological survey was initially undertaken during October 2012 (Extended 
Phase 1 Habitat Survey), with additional survey work undertaken during 
December 2012 (Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey Addendum).  These surveys 
found no evidence of significant species on site (ie bats, otters, water vole, 
badgers and red squirrels), and whilst acknowledging the presence of other 
mammals within the vicinity of the site (eg foxes), in addition to nests in some of 
the more mature trees, it was established that there was no requirement for any 
protected species licence.  The proposed landscaping, which includes 
replacement tree planting and the creation of a natural wetland habitat around 
the proposed SUDS basin will provide suitable habitats for wildlife, and will serve 
to mitigate any adverse impact on existing wildlife likely to arise as a result of the 
proposed development on site.  
 
Impact on Residential Character and Amenity  
The surrounding area is very much characterised by residential development, 
mainly comprising 1½ storey, semi-detached dwellings in a fairly typical 
1960’s/1970’s design, with these properties accessed along relatively narrow 
street layouts.  The proposed development comprises a majority of 2 storey, 
detached dwellings within what is perhaps a more open street layout, but which is 
more in keeping with the principles of ‘Designing Streets’, where shared surfaces 
are predominant and a more pedestrian friendly layout is sought.  Whilst the 
character and design of the proposed development is similar in many respects to 
that of many contemporary residential developments, the surrounding area within 
which the development will lie is nevertheless typical of its time, and on this basis 
the proposed development will perhaps not appear to be particularly in-keeping 
with its surroundings.  However, it is considered that the design, form and layout 
of the proposed development is appropriate for the site and that sufficient 
attention has been paid to linking the proposed development with existing 
dwellings, in particular along Hopetoun Grange.    
 
The proposed development will introduce 12 dwellings along the eastern 
boundary of the site, 9 of which will have their rear elevations facing east across 
their private garden ground towards the rear gardens of existing residential 
properties on Hopecroft Avenue, however with a separation distance of some 27 
to 30 metres between the properties it is considered that an acceptable degree of 
privacy can be maintained.  For the 3 remaining properties which are proposed 
along the eastern boundary, these have their gable ends facing the gable end of 
the property at 26 Hopetoun Grange, the rear elevations of properties between 
23-25 Hopecroft Drive and the rear and gable end of the property at No 27  
 
 
 Page 20



Hopecroft Drive, and will lie at a distance of between 5 and 12 metres from their 
respective common boundaries.  Whilst a single gable-end window will be 
incorporated into the design of these 3 properties at 1st floor level, these windows 
serve the upper landings of the properties and will therefore not introduce any 
significant impact on existing privacy in terms of overlooking of the above-
mentioned properties and their gardens from habitable rooms such as bedrooms.   
 
A distance of approximately 12 metres will separate the gable end of No 26 
Hopetoun Grange and the gable end of the nearest neighbouring property 
proposed along Hopetoun Grange, whilst an average of closer to 25 metres will 
separate the remaining properties along the eastern boundary of the site with 
those on Hopecroft Avenue and Hopecroft Drive.  These separation distances will 
ensure that any overshadowing introduced as a result of the proposed 
development would be minimal, and certainly within an acceptable level.  
Although daylighting to surrounding properties would not be affected by the 
development, given the separation distances highlighted above, there is the 
potential for a small number of residential units located along the eastern 
boundary of the application site to cast some shadow into rear gardens for limited 
periods, but once again, such impact is considered to be within an acceptable 
level.  
 
Taking the above into account, it is considered that the proposed development 
would not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of the 
surrounding area, and as such the proposal would not be contrary to Policy H1 
(Residential Areas).  Furthermore, the proposal would appear to be in 
accordance with Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) on housing, in terms of its 
location next to existing residential development, its density which compares 
favourably with that of the surrounding area, and its character and layout, which 
has taken full account of the setting.  The 25% of affordable housing being 
proposed on site, as detailed below, matches the benchmark figures set by SPP.  
 
Relevant Planning Matters Raised in Written Representations 
A range of matters raised in the representations submitted have been addressed 
in the appropriate sections above, including issues relating to design, noise, 
impact upon residential amenity, trees, access, traffic, car parking and road 
safety.  Although certain matters raised are not material considerations, such as 
the likely financial gains of the developer in submitting this planning application, 
any remaining matter which has not been previously dealt with is addressed 
below. 
 

• It has been suggested that some of the supporting documents submitted 
were inadequate and/or insufficient in terms of their content, and whilst 
this was perhaps the case with regards some of the information received 
when the application was initially submitted, following the necessary 
assessment of the proposal additional information was requested and 
submitted, including as a result of consultee responses and comments.  
Comments were also made in relation to the likely independent nature of 
the supporting documents submitted, however in this respect the planning 
authority must assume, unless there is clear evidence to the contrary, that 
an appropriate level of professional competency and integrity is 
maintained by those providing the supporting documents.  

 
 Page 21



• Concerns have been raised in relation to the likely adverse impact which 
the proposed development will have on existing local amenities, including 
shops and schools.  In terms of the impact of the proposal on local shops, 
which include a general store, a butcher and chip shop, these local 
amenities are likely to benefit from increased trade as a result of the 
proposed development, thereby helping to maintain the vitality of the 
existing community, rather than having a negative impact.  The impact of 
the proposed development on local education facilities has been assessed 
by the Council’s education service, and an appropriate level of developer 
contribution secured through legal agreement which takes into account 
existing school capacities.  

• Concerns have been raised regarding local residents not being adequately 
notified of the proposed development, either at pre-application 
consultation stage or once the formal planning application was lodged.  
Similar concerns were also raised in relation to notifying local residents of 
the planning brief process.  However, it is considered that an appropriate 
level of public consultation took place with regards all 3 stages of the 
development proposal.  Following submission of the Proposal of 
Application Notice, a meeting with the community council and 2 public 
events were arranged by the developers.  The public events were 
advertised in the local press and in several local shops, as recommended 
by this planning authority.  The statutory neighbour notification was then 
undertaken in terms of the formal planning application, in addition to the 
proposal being advertised in the press.  With regards the planning brief 
process, a public exhibition was held in October 2012 and was attended 
by 30 people.  In addition to this, following the planning brief being 
presented to Development Management Sub-committee on 6 December 
2012, a 4 week period of public consultation took place in January 2013.   

 
Affordable Housing/ Developer Contributions 
The proposed development is deemed to comply with the principles outlined in 
PAN 2/2010 (Affordable Housing and Housing Land Audits) which seeks to 
facilitate the development of affordable housing in order to secure sustainable, 
mixed communities.  The proposal is in accordance with Policy H5 (Affordable 
Housing) which seeks 25% of the total number of units to be provided as 
affordable housing, with the developer having included 16 no. 2 bedroom flatted 
properties on site.  In terms of Policy I1(Infrastructure Delivery and Developer 
Contributions) a legal agreement is required in order to secure planning gain 
contributions to be used for off-setting the impact of the development on 
education, community facilities, recreation, core path network and the Strategic 
Transport Fund.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Willingness to approve, subject to conditions, but to withhold the issue of 
the consent document until the applicant has entered into a legal 
agreement with the Council to secure the identified developer contributions 
towards primary education, community facilities, recreation, core path 
networks and the strategic transport fund.  
 
 
 
 Page 22



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Planning legislation requires that planning applications are determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  The site is identified as an Opportunity Site (OP20) for residential 
development in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, and on this basis the 
principle of the proposed development is considered acceptable. 
 
The proposal is deemed suitably compliant with relevant national and local plan 
policy and guidance, including Scottish Government policy statements on 
'Designing Places' and 'Designing Streets'; Aberdeen City and Shire Structure 
Plan objectives for new development, which seek to create sustainable mixed 
communities with appropriate access; and a range of local plan policy, including 
Policy H1 (Residential Areas), Policy D1 (Architecture and Placemaking), Policy 
D2 (Design and Amenity, Policy H8 (Housing and Aberdeen Airport), and Policy 
H3 (Density).  Whilst the proposal is perhaps not strictly compliant with Policy 
NE5 (Trees and Woodland), as a result of the loss of mature trees on a site 
which is covered by a tree preservation order, it has been established and 
accepted that the poor condition of some of these trees would lead to their loss 
regardless of the proposed development, and securing an appropriate level of 
replacement planting and landscaping throughout the site will mitigate such loss. 
 
The proposal has also been deemed acceptable in terms of its compliance with a 
range of supplementary guidance, including securing affordable housing on site 
at a level of 25%, and ensuring an appropriate level of developer contributions is 
secured which will contribute to primary education, community facilities, 
recreation, core path networks and strategic transport fund, through the signing 
of a legal agreement.  The Hopecroft Planning Brief which identified the site as 
being suitable for a residential development of around 65 units was ratified by the 
Scottish Government in June this year and subsequently formally adopted as 
supplementary guidance, and on this basis now forms a material consideration in 
the determination of this application. 
 
Taking the above into account it is considered that the proposed development 
proposal should be supported as it largely conforms to all relevant national and 
local plan policies. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
it is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
 (1)  that the Dollar flatted properties proposed as part of the residential units of 
the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless acoustically 
attenuated ventilators have been installed within the lounge accommodation of 
these aforementioned properties - in the interests of residential amenity 
 
(2)  that no development pursuant to this planning permission shall take place 
unless there has been submitted to and approved in writing for the purpose by 
the planning authority,  report on three days of noise measurements, to be 
undertaken at a representative location in the vicinity of the development.  These 
measurements should be weekday LAeq 1 hour or 15 minute readings and 
calculated to obtain 18 hour LAeq (23:00 - 07:00).  Whilst these measurements 
may be unmanned, short term measurements when helicopters are in flight Page 23



overhead should also be taken. If the noise measurement assessment report 
demonstrates the need for noise attenuation to be incorporated into the fabric of 
the residential units of the development hereby approved, then such attenuation 
measures as may be recommended by the planning authority shall be 
implemented in full prior to occupation of any residential unit - in the interests of 
residential amenity. 
 
(3)  that the SUDS basin is constructed as per the detail included in the Drainage 
Assessment Issue 1 by Fairhurst dated 4 July 2013, and is capable of retaining 
flows up to and including the 1 in 200 year store event plus climate change - in 
order to ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
  
(4)  that the discharge rate, as outlined in the Drainage Assessment Issue 1 by 
Fairhurst dated 4 July 2013, does not exceed the greenfield flows as per the 
design calculations - in order to safeguard water qualities in adjacent 
watercourses and to ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
(5)  that no development shall take place unless there has been submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the planning authority detailed plans showing the visibility 
splays for all new road junctions, including for the 3 no. driveways accessing onto 
Hopetoun Grange, and thereafter the junctions shall be constructed in full 
accordance with the approved plans - in the interests of road safety and public 
safety 
 
(6)  that the development hereby granted planning permission shall not be 
occupied unless the lane to the west of the site between the A96 and the point 
that it interacts with what will become the spine road to the future development to 
the west is upgraded to an adoptable standard for pedestrians and cyclists.  
Notwithstanding that the phasing of construction on site may impact on when 
safe access and use of the path by pedestrians may be available,  details of the 
proposed upgrading work to the path must nevertheless be submitted to and 
approved by the planning authority, and the upgrading work must be completed 
prior to any residential unit being occupied - in order to ensure that the proposed 
development offers access to more sustainable forms of travel to and from the 
development 
 
(7)  that the development hereby granted planning permission shall be  
completed in full accordance with Drawing No DL002 Rev H which demonstrates 
the provision of a service strip between the street and residential dwellings along 
the proposed shared surface road, and that no future development takes place 
within the aforementioned service strip - in the interests of public safety and the 
free flow of traffic  
 
(8)  that no part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied unless a 
schedule of work relating to upgrading of bus shelters, seating, lighting, timetable 
information and boarding kerbs for bus stops on the A96 and on Sclattie Park 
identified in the Transport Statement (Issue 2 Rev 3 by Fairhurst) has been 
submitted to and approved by the planning authority, and subsequently the 
upgrading work has been implemented prior to the occupancy of any residential 
unit implemented - in order to encourage more sustainable forms of travel to and 
from development  
 
 Page 24



(9)  that no development pursuant to this planning permission shall take place 
unless formal approval has been secured for access under the trunk road (A96) 
and under a section of 3rd party land lying immediately to the east of the site to 
provide connection to the proposed surface water drainage and public sewer - in 
order to ensure that the proposed development can be adequately drained and 
that no significant alteration is necessary to the development layout should the 
proposed sewer connection not be achievable 
 
(10)  that no development pursuant to this planning permission shall take place, 
nor shall any part of the development hereby approved be occupied, unless there 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority,  a 
detailed scheme of site and plot boundary enclosures for the entire development 
hereby granted planning permission, which scheme shall include no boundary 
enclosure above a maximum height of 1 metre being permitted to the front of any 
residential unit within the development hereby approved.  None of the buildings 
hereby granted planning permission shall be occupied unless the said scheme 
has been implemented in its entirety - in order to preserve the amenity of the 
neighbourhood and in the interests of road and public safety 
 
(11)  that no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved 
shall be carried out unless there has been submitted to and approved in writing 
for the purpose by the planning authority a further detailed scheme of 
landscaping for the site, which scheme shall include both soft  and water 
landscaping, indications of all existing trees and landscaped areas on the land 
and details of any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in 
the course of development, and shall also clearly identify the locations where root 
barrier protection shall be implemented.  The scheme shall include the proposed 
areas of trees/shrub planting including details of numbers, densities, locations, 
species, sizes and stage of maturity at planting, with all replacement planting on 
site undertaken on the basis of 2 for 1 for every tree removed.  Such landscaping 
scheme shall include a high percentage of native species both in terms of the 
proposed trees (eg Sessile oak, Scots pine, Field maple and aspen) and the 
hedgerows, whilst also taking into account that the choice of species should 
discourage bird activity (feeding/roosting) which may present a bird strike threat 
to aircraft operating at Aberdeen International Airport - in the interests of the 
amenity of the area and to avoid endangering the safe movement of aircraft and 
the operation of Aberdeen International Airport through the attraction of birds. 
 
(12)  that all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved scheme of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following the 
completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be planted, or 
in accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and approved in 
writing for the purpose by the planning authority - in the interests of the amenity 
of the area. 
 
(13)  that no development shall take place unless a plan showing those trees to 
be removed and those to be retained and a scheme for the protection of all trees 
to be retained on the site during construction works has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Planning Authority and any such scheme as may have 

Page 25



been approved has been implemented - in order to ensure adequate protection 
for the trees on site during the construction of the development. 
  
(14)  that any tree work which appears to become necessary during the 
implementation of the development shall not be undertaken without the prior 
written consent of the Planning Authority; any damage caused to trees growing 
on the site shall be remedied in accordance with British Standard 3998: 2010 
"Recommendations for Tree Work" before the building hereby approved is first 
occupied - in order to preserve the character and visual amenity of the area. 
 
(15)  that no materials, supplies, plant, machinery, spoil, changes in ground 
levels or construction activities shall be permitted within the protected areas 
specified in the aforementioned scheme of tree protection without the written 
consent of the Planning Authority and no fire shall be lit in a position where the 
flames could extend to within 5 metres of foliage, branches or trunks - in order to 
ensure adequate protection for the trees on site during the construction of the 
development. 
  
(16)  that no development shall take place within the application site until the 
applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work 
which shall include post-excavation and publication work in accordance with a 
written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and 
approved by the planning authority - in the interests of protecting items of 
historical importance as may exist within the application site. 
 
(17)  that no construction work pursuant to the planning permission hereby 
approved shall be undertaken by cranage or scaffolding of a height greater than 
8.2 metres above ground level without prior consultation and approval of 
Aberdeen International Airport - in order to avoid endangering the safe movement 
of aircraft and the operation of Aberdeen International Airport 
 
(18)  that no development pursuant to the planning permsision hereby approved 
shall take place until a bird hazard management plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority.  The submitted plan shall include 
details of the developer's commitment to managing the risk of attracting birds to 
the site during excavation activities, and the measures in place for the safe 
dispersal of birds and thereafter the agreed measures shall be implemented in 
full - to avoid endangering the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of 
Aberdeen International Airport through the attraction of birds 
 
(19)  that no development shall take place unless details of all measures for 
deterring birds from the proposed Sustainable Urban Drainage System scheme 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.  Such 
details shall outline the meaures being put in place to avoid endangering the safe 
operation of aircraft through the attraction of birds and thereafter such measures 
should be implemented in complete accordance with the approved details – in 
order to avoid endangering the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of 
Aberdeen International Airport through the attraction of birds. 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



(20)  that there shall be no means of direct vehicular access from the application 
site to the trunk road (A96).  Pedestrian access to the trunk road shall be 
restricted to the footpath imediately to the west of the site - to minimise 
interference with the safety and free flow of the traffic on the trunk road. 
 
 (21)  that the applicant shall liaise with Transport Scotland and its Operating 
Company in regard to the timing, traffic management and standard of 
construction required for the pipleine crossing under the trunk road (A96) - to 
minimise interference with the safety and free flow of the traffic on the trunk road 
 
(22)  That no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved 
shall take place unless detailed plans showing lighting schemes required during 
construction and for the completed development are submitted and approved in 
writing by the planning authority.  Such lighting schemes shall incorporate flat 
glass, full cut off design with horizontal mountings, and shall ensure that no light 
spill occurs above the horizontal - to avoid endangering the safe operation of 
aircraft through confusion with aeronautical ground lights or glare. 
 
(23)  that no development shall take place unless a scheme detailing compliance 
with the Council's 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings' supplementary guidance has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority, and any 
recommended measures specified within that scheme for the reduction of carbon 
emissions have been implemented in full.  Thereafter no building shall be 
occupied unless the recommended measures specified within that scheme for 
the reduction of carbon emissions have been implemented in full - to ensure that 
this development complies with requirements for reductions in carbon emissions 
specified in the City Council's relevant published Supplementary Guidance 
document, 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings'. 
 
(24)  that no development pursuant to this development shall take place unless 
further detailed specification has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the planning authority clearly demonstrating that the load-bearing capacity of the 
proposed combined cycleway/footpath is capable for use by emergency service 
vehicles - in the interests of road safety and public safety. 
 
(25)  that no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved 
shall be carried out unless a method statement for the use of no-dig road and 
path construction within the root protection areas of retained trees has been 
submitted to and approved in writing for the purpose by the planning authority - in 
the interests of the amenity of the area. 
 
(26)  that no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved 
shall be carried out unless drawings showing specific finished ground levels, 
finished road levels, and finished ground floor levels of dwellings across the site 
have been submitted and approved in writing for the purpose by the planning 
authority - in the interests of the amenity of the area 
 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 
  

 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



LAND ADJ TO NTH DEESIDE ROAD, 
PITTENGULLIES BRAE, PETERCULTER 
 
ERECTION OF 32 NO.UNIT RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT WITH ANCILLARY SITE 
WORKS AND LANDSCAPING    
 
For: Bancon Developments Ltd 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Planning Permission in 
Principle 
Application Ref.   :  P130230 
Application Date:       21/02/2013 
Officer :                     Donna Laing 
Ward : Lower Deeside (M Boulton/A Malone/M 
Malik) 

Advert  : Can't notify neighbour(s) 
Advertised on: 13/03/2013 
Committee Date: 22 August 2013 
Community Council : Comments 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Willingness to approve, subject to conditions, but to withhold the issue of 
the consent document until the applicant has made a payment to the 
Council to secure the identified developer contributions towards affordable 
housing units, provision of community facilities and recreation, library, 
core path improvements, healthcare and strategic transport fund. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 65



DESCRIPTION 
The application site, which extends to some 1.72 hectares is located to the south 
of North Deeside Road, and abuts Pittengullies Brae. The site sits immediately 
on the eastern outskirts of Peterculter. The site is zoned within the Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan 2012 as an opportunity site. The opportunity site, OP59: 
Peterculter East, is noted within the local development plan as being capable of 
providing a development of 25 homes.  
 
At present the site is a field, used for the grazing of horses. At the North Deeside 
Road, north west of the site, there are two existing dwelling houses, these sit out 
with the site boundary but influence the shape of the development site. These 
two houses, due to the lie of the land, sit below North Deeside Road with the roof 
of each premises visible.  
 
The site has an undulating nature and slopes down approximately 18m from 
North Deeside Road towards the South Deeside line, which form the south 
eastern boundary of the site. There are mature trees sitting out with the site on its 
north east and south east boundary, with the canopy of these trees spreading 
onto the site. The boundary enclosure along the tree line comprises a stone 
dyke, with a wire fence running beside this. The boundary enclosure to 
Pittengullies Brae is a wire fence, while on North Deeside Road there is a mixture 
of stone wall, shrubbery and timber fencing  
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
The site was rezoned in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 from green 
belt to OP59: Peterculter east and rezoned as land release policy, for the 
development of 25 homes.  
 
P130229 – erection of 8 no. unit residential development with ancillary site works 
and landscaping – pending. There is a current detailed planning permission for 
the development of 8 units within the boundary of the Planning Permission in 
Principle Site.  
 
P130845 – Signage application – pending  
 
PROPOSAL 
This application seeks Planning Permission in Principle (PPiP) for the 
construction of dwelling houses. The site would take access from two points; 
firstly 8 no. units would be accessed from North Deeside Road while the 
remainder of the site would be accessed from Pittengullies Brae. A new road 
would be routed through the site, and a path would be created linking the 8 units 
closest to North Deeside Road with the remainder of the site. A play park would 
be created for the site, located in the northern corner. At this stage, the applicant 
seeks to establish only the general principle of development at the scale 
proposed on the application site, and so detailed design proposals do not form 
part of this application. Such detailed design proposals would require to be the 
subject of a further application, relating to Matters Specified in Conditions (MSC), 
in the event that members are minded to approve this application.  
 
It should also be borne in mind that a detailed planning application (P130229) 
has been submitted for 8 units on the site. 
 
 Page 66



Supporting Documents 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -   
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?130230 

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
A tree report and a drainage impact assessment have been submitted for this 
site.  
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO SUB-COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the Sub-committee because a total of 9 
letters of objection have been received, along with a letter of objection from the 
statutory community council, Cults, Bieldside and Milltimber Community Council. 
Accordingly, the application falls out with the scope of the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
Roads Project Team – response received – no objection yet requested a 
number of conditions were added relating to access, upgrading of sustainable 
transport methods and flood routing. 
Environmental Health – no response received.  
Developer Contributions Team – response received - contributions are also 
sought towards the provision of affordable housing units, provision of community 
facilities and recreation, library, core path improvements, healthcare and strategic 
transport fund. 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) – Response received –
satisfied with the drainage impact assessment and the SUDS pond. A condition 
has been requested to provide a condition survey, preferable through CCTV, of 
the culverted watercourse adjacent to the development and in the immediate 
downstream, to clarify the suitability of the connection of the drainage layout to 
this watercourse. 
Education, Culture & Sport (Archaeology) – response received - No 
development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation 
of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the 
Planning Authority. The programme of archaeological work will include all 
necessary post-excavation and publication work. 
Scottish Environment Protection Agency – response received – conditions 
should be attached on the submission of a construction management plan and 
refuse segregation, storage, collection and management of residential waste.  
Community Council – response received  

• There has been a lack of consultation with the community council on this 
application, the applicant has engaged with Culter Community Council but 
not Cults, Bieldside and Milltimber Community Council.  

• The OP59 Peterculter site is zoned for 25 units, we object to the proposal 
exceeding this threshold 

• There is concern regarding traffic turning onto and from the site directly 
onto North Deeside Road, especially traffic turning out into North Deeside 
Road in an easterly direction. All traffic should be directed to Pittengullies 
Brae first 

 

Page 67



• SUDS planning for application 130229 and 130230 should be considered 
for the whole site as one. There are existing drainage and sewage 
overflow issues and jointly with Culter Community Council we ask that 
these be resolved via planning gain for this OP site.  

 
REPRESENTATIONS 
8 letters of objection have been received. The objections raised relate to the 
following matters.  
 
1. Infrastructure  
Traffic 
The existing difficult access and egress from Pittengullies Brae would be 
increased,  
Congestion and queuing would increase in the village  
All traffic should be directed to Pittengullies Brae first.  
The creation of cul-de-sacs is not acceptable. The site should be redesigned with 
the creation of a circular route off Pittengullie Brae. The upper section of the site 
will then be at a lower level than proposed. 
The increase in traffic on Pittengullie Brae will be dangerous for the children of 
Camphill and would impact negatively upon the experience and safety of 
pedestrians (including children with special needs) using Camphill Estates 
western entrance. This entrance would become more important after the 
construction of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route 
 
Services 
The infrastructure cannot cope as it is – public transport, council services, 
schools, health services 
 
Drainage  
SUDS planning for application 130229 and 130230 should be considered for the 
whole site as one. There are existing drainage and sewage overflow issues; we 
ask that these be resolved via planning gain for this OP site.  
 
2. Impact on Amenity 
Impact on view and attractiveness of Peterculter  
Building on this site will spoil the view of the valley as you come into Peterculter 
 
Disappointed the SR4 zoning has been lost; ribbon development and loss of 
open space/parkland will reduce the attractiveness of Peterculter  
 
A retaining wall and 6 ft fence should be erected on the south east boundary of 
423 North Deeside Road to provide a degree of privacy, prevent overlooking and 
reduce visual/noise impact from the play park 
 
Construction noise and visual effects  
The increase in proposed numbers from 25 units to 33 units would add to the 
scale and possible duration of noise and visual effects during construction, and 
subsequently during winter months where the screening effects of the trees 
between the development site and Camphill Estate is reduced.  
 
 
 

Page 68



The proposal would raise serious concerns for the Camphill Communities due to 
the potential impact. 
 
There will be a visual impact from the site on those using the South Deeside 
Line, and this would be compounded by the increase in numbers from 25 units to 
33 units. The noise from the building works will cause huge trauma to the 
children attending Camphill School and limit their quality of life.  
 
Ground levels 
The ground levels will be raised significantly and the proposed dwellings would 
completely overpower the existing houses in close proximity to the site. The earth 
works to raise plots 5 and 8 are extensive and would not allow plots 1 and 4 to 
enjoy the view from the naturally sloping site 
 
Trees  
The large Ash tree would be required to be removed to accommodate the 
footpath in plot 9. The footpath should be re-routed. The Hawthorne tree at the 
north of plot 4 should be retained as it provides a level of privacy and reduces 
noise from the North Deeside Road 
 
The type and placement of any trees should be considered as they would have 
the potential to obscure the outlook of 423 North Deeside Road should they grow 
too tall 
 
Facilities 
The play area should be bigger and should cover proposed plot 22. A retaining 
wall and 6 ft fence should be erected on the south east boundary of 423 North 
Deeside Road to provide a degree of privacy, prevent overlooking and reduce 
visual/noise impact from the play park. 
 
3. Intensification of site  
The number of units, 33, does not comply with the 25 allocated within Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan.  
 
4. Other  
The 30mph speed limit should be relocated past Avondow to the corner before 
Kippie Lodge.  
 
PLANNING POLICY 
Scottish Planning Policy  
Paragraph 66 of the Scottish Planning Policy outlines there is a commitment from 
the Scottish Government to increase the supply of new homes and the planning 
system should contribute to raising the rate of new house building by identifying a 
generous supply of land for the provision of a range of housing in the right 
places.  
 
Strategic Development Plan  
Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan  
Sets strategic growth and policy areas for the City and Shire and outlines by 
2030 there are to be 36,000 new homes proposed for Aberdeen City. The land 
allocations are set out within the local development plan.  
 

Page 69



Sustainable Mixed Communities section – page 22 - For all housing development 
of over one hectare in strategic growth areas to be in line with approved 
supplementary guidance and generally have no less than 30 dwellings per 
hectare. 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan  
Policy LR1: Land Release Policy 
Part A – Phase 1 Release Development: Housing 2007 -2016; and employment 
2007 -2023 
Housing and employment development on sites allocated in Phase 1 will be 
approved in principle within areas designated for housing or employment. 
Development on an allocated site or in close proximity to an allocated site that 
jeopardises the full provision of the allocation will be refused.  
 
Policy I1: Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions 
Development must be accompanied by the infrastructure, services and facilities 
required to support new or expanding communities and the scale and type of 
developments proposed. Where development either individually or cumulatively 
will place additional demands on community facilities or infrastructure that would 
necessitate new facilities or exacerbate deficiencies in existing provision, the 
Council will require the developer to meet or contribute to the cost of providing or 
improving such infrastructure or facilities. 
 
New infrastructure will either be provided by the developer or through financial 
contributions.  
 
Policy T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development  
New developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been 
taken to minimise the traffic generated.  
 
Maximum parking standards for a number of modes of transport are set out in 
Supplementary Guidance on Transport and Accessibility and details the 
standards that different types of development should provide.  
 
Policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking 
To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with 
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting. 
Factors such as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation, details, the 
proportions of building elements, together with the spaces around buildings, 
including streets, squares, open space, landscaping and boundary treatments, 
will be considered in assessing that contribution. 
 
Policy D2: Design and Amenity 
Policy D2 sets out a series of criteria for new development, intended to ensure 
that an appropriate level of amenity can be secured for residents of both that new 
development and neighbouring land and buildings. 
 
Policy D3: Sustainable and Active Travel 
New development will be designed in order to minimise travel by private car, 
improve access to services and promote healthy lifestyles by encouraging active  
 
 

Page 70



travel. Development will maintain and enhance permeability, ensuring that 
opportunities for sustainable and active travel are both protected and improved. 
Access to, and movement within and between, new and existing developments 
will prioritise transport modes in the following order – walking, cycling, public 
transport, car and other motorised vehicles.  
 
Policy D6: Landscape 
Development will not be acceptable unless it avoids: 
 
1. significantly adversely affecting landscape character and elements which 

contribute to, or provide, a distinct ‘sense of place’ which point to being either 
in or around Aberdeen or a particular part of it; 

 
2.  obstructing important views of the City’s townscape, landmarks and features 

when seen from busy and important publicly accessible vantage points such 
as roads, railways, recreation areas and pathways and particularly from the 
main city approaches; 

 
3. disturbance, loss or damage to important recreation, wildlife or woodland 

resources or to the physical links between them; 
 
4. sprawling onto important or necessary green spaces or buffers between places 

or communities with individual identities, and those which can provide 
opportunities for countryside activities. 

 
Development should avoid significant adverse impacts upon existing landscape 
elements, including linear and boundary features or other components, which 
contribute to local amenity, and provide opportunities for conserving, restoring or 
enhancing them. 
 
Policy H3: Density 
The Council will seek an appropriate density of development on all housing 
allocations and windfall sites. All residential development of over one hectare 
must:  
 
1. meet a minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare (net). Net dwelling 

density includes those areas which will be developed for housing and directly 
associated uses, including access roads within the site, garden ground and 
incidental open space: 

 
2. have consideration of the site’s character and those of the surrounding area: 
 
3. create an attractive residential environment and safeguard living conditions 

within the development; and  
 
Policy H5: Affordable Housing  
Housing developments of five units or more are required to contribute no less 
than 25% of the total number of units as affordable housing.  
 
 
 
 
 Page 71



Policy NE4: Open Space Provision in New Development  
The City Council will require the provision of at least 2.8 hectares per 1,000 
people of meaningful and useful public open space in new residential 
development.  
 
Communal or public open space should be provided in all residential 
developments.  
 
Policy NE5: Trees and Woodlands 
There is a presumption against all activities and development that will result in 
the loss of or damage to established trees and woodlands that contribute 
significantly to nature conservation, landscape character or local amenity, 
including ancient and semi-natural woodland which is irreplaceable. Appropriate 
measures should be taken for the protection and long term management of 
existing trees and new planting both during and after construction.  
 
Policy NE6: Flooding and Drainage 
Development will not be permitted if:  
 
1   it would increase the risk of flooding:- 
 

a) By reducing the ability of the functional flood plain to store and convey 
water; 
b) Through the discharge of additional surface water; or 
c) By harming flood defences. 

 
2  it would be at risk itself from flooding 
 
Where more than then 10 homes or greater than 100m2 floorspace is proposed, 
the developer will be required to submit a Drainage Impact Assessment. Surface 
water drainage associated with development must:  
 
1   be the most appropriate available in terms of SUDS; and 
 
2   avoid flooding and pollution both during and after construction.  
 
Policy NE9: Access and Informal Recreation  
New development should not compromise the integrity of existing or potential 
recreational opportunities including access rights, core paths, other paths and 
rights of way. Wherever appropriate, developments should include new or 
improved provision for public access, permeability and/or links to green space for 
recreation and active travel. 
 
Policy R6: Waste Management Requirements for New Development 
Housing developments should have sufficient space for the storage of residual, 
recyclable and compostable wastes. Details of storage facilities and means of 
collection must be included as part of any planning application for development 
which would generate waste.  
 
 
 
 
 Page 72



Policy R7: Low and Zero Carbon Buildings 
All new buildings, in meeting building regulations energy requirements, must 
install low and zero carbon generating technology to reduce the predicted carbon 
dioxide emissions by at least 15% below 2007 building standards.  
 
Supplementary Guidance  
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual  
The purpose of this Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual is to 
provide clear guidance on the methodology used to identify infrastructure 
requirements and the criteria that should be used to calculate developer 
contributions to support new development. 
 
Transport and Accessibility Supplementary Guidance  
The guidance examines a number of transport and accessibility issues that may 
have to be considered as part of a planning application.  
 
Affordable Housing   
Outlines affordable housing provision and the delivery of this on site or by 
securing a contribution.  
 
Open Space  
Outlines the different types of open space and the ratios required for different 
sizes of development 
 
Trees and Woodlands 
Outlines policy and legislation on trees and protection measures required during 
construction periods and outlines the requirements within a tree survey. 
 
Drainage Impact Assessment  
The guidance provides information on the requirements on the submission of 
Drainage Impact Assessment and emphasises the requirements for SUDS. 
 
Waste Management  
Developments should provide enough space for the storage and collection of 
waste access to such facilities.  
 
Low and Zero Carbon Buildings  
The purpose of this supplementary guidance is to provide the methodology for 
developers to demonstrate compliance with Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
policy R7.  
 
EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 73



Principle of Development  
Scottish Planning Policy outlines a commitment to increase the supply of new 
housing and the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan outlines by 2030 there 
are to be 36,000 new homes proposed for Aberdeen City. The land allocations 
are set out within the local development plan. The principle of residential 
development on this site will, in the first instance, be established by considering 
how it relates to the zoning of the site, Policy LR1: Land Release Policy. The site 
is zoned Opportunity Site 59: Peterculter East for the development of 25 homes 
within the first phase of development from 2007 to 2016. Therefore, housing 
development on this site will be approved in principle, with the detail of the 
application being assessed through both this application and subsequent 
applications.  
 
Scale and pattern of development, design and amenity  
Scale and pattern of development 
As this application seeks Planning Permission in Principle (PPiP), the application 
is to establish the acceptability of a proposal without having to develop the 
detailed proposal. The applicant is not required to submit full details of any new 
dwellings. Such details can be secured as part of a later application relating to 
Matters Specified in Conditions (MSC). 
 
The original indicative layout submitted has been amended due to concerns 
regarding the possible of overshadowing on the site from the mature trees 
surrounding the site. There were concerns the overshadowing would have a 
detrimental impact on amenity of some of the indicative plots. The number of 
houses shown in the indicative plan is now 32 and is not likely to change.  
 
As the proposed site sits to the eastern edge of Peterculter the pattern of 
development surrounding the site is, for the most part, one of large plots and a 
high degree of open space. The zoning surrounding the north east and south 
east edges of the site are Policy NE2: Green Belt and Policy NE1: Green Space 
Network. To the north west and south west of the site the zoning is Policy H1: 
Residential. The historic pattern of development to the eastern edge of 
Peterculter along the southern side of North Deeside Road, comprises plots with 
houses in close proximity to North Deeside Road and large gardens running 
down to the South Deeside Line. This pattern of development has been broken 
by the creation of Pittengullies Brae/Circle, to the west of the proposed site, in 
which the pattern of development is much smaller plots and one and two storey 
detached and semi-detached properties. The indicative layout would follow the 
pattern of development of Pittengullies Circle more than the historic pattern of 
development. Point 2 of Policy H3: Density of the Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan states development must have consideration of the site’s character and 
those surrounding it. The indicative design would be comparable to the modern 
pattern of development at Pittengullies Circle.  
 
The local development plan outlines the opportunity site could accommodate 25 
homes. The increase in number from units from 25 is acceptable. Consideration 
should be given to Policy H3: Density of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
and the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan which outline for housing 
developments over 1 hectare a minimum density of 30 dwelling per hectare (net)  
 
 

Page 74



must be met. The provision of 32 units for a 1.72 hectare site therefore would not 
comply with policy which would require 51 houses be developed. The proposed 
density in the surrounding area is approximately 28 units per hectare. The 
provision of 32 units, which would equate to approximately 19 units per hectare 
would not constitute over development. 
 
The density of the proposed site as requested by policy Policy H3: Density of the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan cannot be applied in isolation. There is a 
clear need for the level of proposed development to be considered within the 
context of the surrounding area and the particulars of the site itself, give a better 
measure of a sites capacity. From the detail supplied within the indicative plans it 
would be noted that the density of the site falls below this as the site occupies 
1.72 ha, however, due to the nature of the site this is to be expected.  
 
Design and amenity 
The indicative layout of the houses would appear to follow the criteria as outlined 
in Policy D2: Design and Amenity of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. The 
houses would have public face to the street and a private face to an enclosed 
garden, with residents having access to sitting out areas, either  private or 
communal gardens. As there is no requirement within a PPiP application to 
submit full details of the proposed dwellings, proper consideration of Policy D2: 
Design and Amenity of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and Policy D1: 
Architecture and Placemaking of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan cannot 
be undertaken until full design proposals are submitted at the Matters Specified 
in Condition stage. 
 
Open space 
Open space provision has been included within the proposal through the 
inclusion of a play park to the north of the application site. The open space audit 
has deemed that for every 1000 residents there should be approximately 2.8 ha 
of open space. The open space provision is to be calculated on a ratio of this 
requirement, therefore the approximate open space requirement would be 0.3ha. 
As the site layout is indicative the layout of the openspace would be dealt with at 
a later date through Matters Specified in Conditions applications and at this stage 
consideration with Policy NE4: Open space provision in new development and 
the supplementary guidance: open space can be undertaken. 
 
Landscape and Trees and Woodlands 
The landscape character of the site is noted for its undulating nature and the 
prominence of mature trees which are located out with the site boundary, and in 
particular those trees on the north east and south east sides of the development. 
The development would not lead to the disturbance, loss or damage to important 
recreation, wildlife or woodland resources or to the physical links between them. 
The existing use of the site does not relate to these categories, however, the 
North Deeside Line does run to the south east of the site, and the proposed 
development would be in close proximity to this recreational area. There are 
other sections of the South Deeside Line where the gardens of premises and the 
premises themselves are in close proximity to the North Deeside Line. The 
impact on landscape character and sense of place would not be fully assessed 
until detail of the proposed houses is finalised through the Matters Specified in  
 
 

Page 75



Conditions applications, however, it should be noted that the application would 
lead to a substantial change in the character of the site, as at present the site is a 
field. The principle of development has identified on this site by its allocation as 
an opportunity site through the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012. The 
indicative drawings aim to maintain the sloping characteristic of the site and the 
tree belts beyond the boundary of the sites, therefore some of the landscape 
character and elements which create a sense of place are to be retained with the 
information known to date. The proposal would not sprawl into a green space 
buffer. The proposal therefore would accord with the principles of Policy D6: 
Landscape of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  
 
The applicant has provided a tree survey in support of this application. This 
identifies a total of four trees for removal as a result of poor condition. The 
majority of the existing trees and woodland would be retained. The Council’s 
Arboriculture Planner has stated no objection to the proposed development, and 
has requested that certain conditions be attached to any grant of planning 
permission, relating to landscaping/tree planting and measures for the protection 
during construction of those trees to be retained. Taking these matters into 
account, the proposal is considered to accord with the relevant provisions of 
Policy NE5: Trees and Woodlands of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and 
the Trees and Woodlands Supplementary Guidance.  
 
Drainage/Flood Risk  
A drainage impact assessment has been submitted for the site, which includes 
SUDS pond details. This has been assessed by the Council’s Flooding Team and 
by the Council’s Roads Project Team. The flooding team is satisfied with the 
drainage impact assessment and SUDS pond. A condition has been requested to 
provide a condition survey, preferable through CCTV, of the culverted 
watercourse adjacent to the development and in the immediate downstream, to 
clarify the suitability of the connection of the drainage layout to this watercourse. 
The Roads Project Team has also assessed the application and have requested 
a condition be attached relating to flood routing.  
 
Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA) was consulted on the 
application and have stated that they would not object to the application provided 
conditions are attached to any approval relating to the submission of an 
environmental management plan and details provided on the segregation 
storage, collection and management of residential waste. The drainage impact 
assessment and the SUDS pond elements of the proposal have also been 
assessed by SEPA. Policy NE6: Flooding and Drainage of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan and the supplementary guidance: Drainage Impact 
Assessments have been satisfied through the production of the drainage impact 
assessment and by conditions attached relating to the condition survey of the 
culvert and the production of a construction management plan.  
 
Transport and Access 
The indicative layout proposes access into the site from two points, one from the 
north west of the sit onto North Deeside Road and the other to the south west of 
the site onto Pittengullies Brae. The proposal has been assessed by the  
 
 
 

Page 76



Council’s Roads Project Team who have no objection to the proposed 
development, noting a number of condition be attached relating to upgrading of 
bus stops, provision of a link path to the South Deeside Line, refuse collection 
and visibility splays and will be determined through a Matters Specified in 
Conditions application.  
 
The footpaths surrounding the site are proposed to be widened to 2m and a 
footpath is proposed to run along Pittengullies Brae close to the opening of the 
South Deeside Line. Access to public transport has also been addressed and 
upgrading of the bus stop. Taking these matters into account, it is considered that 
the proposal demonstrates accordance with Policy T2: Managing the Transport 
Impact of Development of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan with further 
consideration required of the Transport and Accessibility supplementary 
guidance through the Matters Specified in Conditions application.  
 
There are 2 core paths in close proximity to the site, core path 66: Deeside Way 
(South Deeside Line) runs to the south of the site and core path 76: Culter House 
Road to River Dee runs to the west of the site. The upgrade of the footway on 
Pittengullies Brae will improve access to these core paths thereby improving 
provision for public access and links to green space for recreation and active 
travel, thereby complying with Policy NE9: Access and Informal Recreation of the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan and with Policy D3: Sustainable and Active 
Travel of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 
 
Developer Contributions 
The site has been assessed by the Developer Obligations Team who has 
advised, in order to comply with Policy I1: Infrastructure Delivery and Developer 
Contributions of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, Policy H5: Affordable 
Housing of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, Infrastructure and 
Development Contributions supplementary guidance and the Affordable Housing 
supplementary guidance, there are a number of areas where financial 
contributions should be sought from the developer, in addition to the addressing 
the need for affordable housing. These obligations include the provision of 8 
affordable housing units, provision of community facilities and recreation, library, 
core path improvements, healthcare and strategic transport fund. Agreement in 
principle has been reached with the applicant and a legal agreement is required 
in order to ensure that this is appropriately controlled. It is recommended that 
permission is withheld pending the conclusion of a legal agreement in relation to 
developer contributions/affordable housing provision.  
 
Low and Zero Carbon Buildings 
The application does not include details of how Low and Zero Carbon Generating 
Technologies will be incorporated into the proposed development, however, such 
details can be obtained as part of a future application through the use of an 
appropriate condition. The proposal cannot be assessed against Policy R7: Low 
and Zero Carbon Buildings of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and the 
Low and Zero Carbon Buildings Supplementary Guidance at this stage.  
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 77



Waste 
Policy R6: Waste Management Requirements for New Developments and the 
Waste Management supplementary guidance cannot be assessed at this stage, 
however, such details can be obtained as part of a future application through the 
use of an appropriate condition. 
 
Material Planning Considerations raised by objectors 
General Statement 
The application is for Planning Permission in Principle and seeks to establish 
only the general principle of development at the scale proposed on the 
application site. The details of many of the issues raised by objectors are to be 
dealt with at a further application stage.  
 
Infrastructure 
Traffic impact  
Is it likely that due to the development there may be an increase in traffic from 
and to the site. The developer has tried to mitigate this through the provision of 
two access and egress points. The application has been subject to consultation 
with the Council’s Roads Projects Team who has deemed they have no objection 
to the proposal. The site is located within walking distance to amenities within the 
Peterculter District Centre and is located next to a bus stop, to which 
improvement are proposed, a cycle route and to Core Paths which will encourage 
more sustainable modes of transport. A footway is also proposed to run 
alongside the site, thereby providing a footway on both sides of Pittengullies 
Brae, rather than just on one side as it is at present. There are a number of core 
paths surrounding the site therefore it is expected that there is already a high 
percentage of movement along the boundary of the site. Access to the core paths 
and to the site itself may increase with the additional housing in this area, 
however, Pittengullies Brae does sit within a 30 mph speed limit zoning and due 
to the layout of the road with corners cars would be expected to be driving at the 
speed limit if not lower. The additional housing in the area may make car drivers 
more aware that they are in a built up area and that they are required to drive 
accordingly, and to the conditions presented to them.  
 
Services 
Has been discussed under the section titled Developer Contributions  
 
Drainage  
The drainage has been discussed under the section titled Drainage/Floodrisk 
 
Impact on Amenity 
Construction noise and visual effects  
The site is well screened and  buffered from the Camphill Estate by the trees, the 
bunding of the South Deeside Line and the distance of 84m from the edge of the 
site to the edge of Camphill Estate. The proposal aims to retain the boundary 
feature of the trees but also there would be a condition attached requiring 
landscaping, therefore there is the possibility of an increase in the screening due 
to the proposal. There are other sections of the South Deeside Line whereby 
there is housing in close proximity therefore this pattern of development is not 
alien to this setting. The construction noise from the development of the site  
 
 

Page 78



would be short term and buffered by the distances involved and screening from 
trees. The increase in housing numbers is discussed within the report already 
under the section entitled Scale and pattern of development 
 
Impact on view and attractiveness of Peterculter  
The views and impact on landscape character were discussed under the section 
of the report titled landscape and trees and woodlands. The zoning of the site 
has been discussed under the section Principle of Development. 
 
Ground levels 
The ground levels are shown by a cross section drawing of the site. These do 
show areas where land is to be built up and there is a substantial difference in 
height between some plots. As the details of the individual houses are not yet 
known, nor is the details of the landscaping, the boundary features et cetera the 
relationship between the proposed and existing dwellings and between the 
proposed dwellings would be addressed through a further application for Material 
Specified in Condition.  
 
Trees  
The tree report highlights the Ash tree (tree number 23) as being retained. The 
Hawthorne tree (number 19) is to be retained. The drawings of the site are 
indicative therefore the layout of the path may be changed from what is shown an 
the drawings at present if the trees is viewed as an important landscape and 
character feature 
 
Facilities 
The play area has been discussed under the section entitled open space. The 
boundary treatment will also be conditioned.  
  
3. Intensification of site  
The intensification of units has been discussed above in the section scale and 
pattern of development. 
 
4. Other  
The repositioning of the 30mph sign is not a material planning consideration.  
 
Material Planning Considerations raised by Community Council 
The applicant is not obliged to consult with the community council as this is not a 
major application.  
The number of units has been discussed under the section scale and pattern of 
development. 
The application has been assessed the Council’s Roads Project Team and traffic 
concerns have been discussed under the heading transport and access.   
The SUDS issues have been addressed under the section titled Drainage/Flood 
Risk 
 
Summary  
In summary, this application proposes an appropriate type of development in an 
area zoned under the land release policy for the erection of 25 homes. The use 
of the site on principle would be acceptable. There are a number of issues that  
 
 

Page 79



require to be addressed though condition and further applications are expected 
through Materials Specified in Conditions. The site is located in close proximity to 
public transport facilities, local amenities, core paths, and recreation space. The 
landscape character and impact on trees has been assessed, and further 
information has been submitted regarding these features, again these aspects 
are to be subject to condition. The drainage and SUDS arrangements have been 
assessed by the relevant Council and statutory bodies who have deemed these 
to be satisfactory. Further detail is required of the condition of the culvert and 
flood routing, which will be achieved through condition 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Willingness to approve, subject to conditions, but to withhold the issue of 
the consent document until the applicant has made a payment to the 
Council to secure the identified developer contributions towards affordable 
housing units, provision of community facilities and recreation, library, 
core path improvements, healthcare and strategic transport fund. 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The development hereby approved is of an appropriate type for the land use 
zoning, LR1: Land Release Policy of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  
The proposal has been assessed by Developer Contributions who have outlined 
a number of financial and physical contributions required, the proposal would 
therefore accord with Policy I1: Infrastructure Delivery and Developer 
Contributions of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, Policy H5: Affordable 
Housing of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, Infrastructure and 
Development Contributions supplementary guidance and the Affordable Housing 
supplementary guidance. The proposal would accord with the principles of Policy 
D6: Landscape of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and with the relevant 
provisions of Policy NE5: Trees and Woodlands of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan and the Trees and Woodlands Supplementary Guidance. The 
proposal is subject to a condition relating to the condition survey of the culvert 
and the production of a construction management plan, yet the indicative 
drainage layout and the SUDS proposal would accord with Policy NE6: Flooding 
and Drainage of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and the supplementary 
guidance: Drainage Impact Assessments. Access arrangements are subject to 
assessment against Policy T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development 
of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan with further consideration required of 
the Transport and Accessibility supplementary guidance, Policy NE9: Access and 
Informal Recreation of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and  Policy D3: 
Sustainable and Active Travel of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. Further 
information would be required to comply with Policy R7: Low and Zero Carbon 
Buildings of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and Low and Zero Carbon 
Building supplementary guidance and also with Policy R6: Waste Management 
Requirements for New Developments and Waste Management Supplementary 
Guidance. The proposal accords with the relevant provisions of the Development 
Plan. No matters raised in representations or through consultation have been of 
sufficient weight to warrant determination other than in accordance with the 
Development Plan.  
 
 
 
 
 Page 80



CONDITIONS 
 
it is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
 (1)  that this planning permission in principle shall lapse on the expiration of 2 
years from the approval of matters specified in conditions being obtained (or, in 
the case of approval of different matters on different dates, from the requisite 
approval for the last such matter being obtained) unless the development to 
which the permission relates is begun before that expiration - - in order to comply 
with Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as 
amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006. 
 
(2)  that this planning permission in principle shall lapse unless a further 
application for approval of the matters specified in condition(s) attached to this 
grant of planning permission in principle has been made before whichever is the 
latest of the following; 
 
(i) the expiration of 3 years from the date of this grant of planning permission in 
principle; 
 
(ii) the expiration of 6 months from the date on which an earlier application for the 
requisite approval of matters specified in conditions was refused; 
 
(iii) the expiration of 6 months from the date on which an appeal against such 
refusal was dismissed; 
 
- in order to comply with Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) 
Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006. 
 
(3)  that no development pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby 
approved shall be carried out until such time as a further application has been 
made to the planning authority for approval of the matters specified in this 
condition and such approval has been granted; these 
matters being details of the 
(i) means of access, 
(iii) layout of development, 
(iii) design and external appearance of the building(s) and 
(iv) the landscaping of the site 
 
- in order to comply with Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 
2006. 
 
(4)  that no development shall take place unless details of the siting, layout,and 
materials of the dwellings have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the planning authority. Thereafter the dwellinghouses shall not be occupied 
unless built in full accordance with details so approved - in order to ensure that 
the develoment demonstrtretes due regard for its context and makes a positive 
contribution to its setting, as required by policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking  
 
 

Page 81



of the Aberdeen Local Develompent Plan - in order to comply with Section 59 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the 
Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006. 
 
(5)  notwithstanding the drainage plan submitted, that no development shall take 
place within the application site until the applicant has carried out and submitted 
to, and been approved in writing by, the planning authority (i) a condition survey, 
preferably through CCTV, of the culverted watercourse adjacent to the 
development and in the immediate downstream;and (ii) an assessment of flood 
routing; and, if required, an updated drainage impact assessment, Sustainable 
Urban Drainage System and outline any flood routing mitigation measures 
required. Thereafter the develompent shall not be occupied unless built in full 
accordance with the details approved - in order to clarify the suitability of 
connection to the watercourse, to safeguard water qualities in adjacent 
watercourses, to ensure that the proposed development can be adequately 
drained and to ensure that the 200 year rainfall event flooding can be 
accommodated. 
 
(6)  that at least two months prior to the commencement of the development, a 
full site specific Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMD) shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority in consultation with 
SEPA and thereafter all works associated with the development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved CEMD - in the interests of pollution 
prevention. 
 
(7)  that no development shall take place within the application site until the 
applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work 
which shall include post-excavation and publication work in accordance with a 
written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and 
approved by the planning authority - in the interests of protecting items of 
historical importance as may exist within the application site. 
 
(8)  that no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved 
shall be carried out unless there has been submitted to and approved in writing 
for the purpose by the planning authority a further detailed scheme of 
landscaping for the site, which scheme shall include indications of all existing 
trees and landscaped areas on the land, and details of any to be retained, 
together with measures for their protection in the course of development, and the 
proposed areas of tree/shrub planting including details of numbers, densities, 
locations, species, sizes and stage of maturity at planting - in the interests of the 
amenity of the area and to minmise the visual impact of the buildings. 
 
(9)  that all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved scheme of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following the 
completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be planted, or 
in accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and approved in 
writing for the purpose by the planning authority - in the interests of the amenity 
of the area. 
 

Page 82



(10)  that no development shall take place unless a plan showing those trees to 
be removed and those to be retained and a scheme for the protection of all trees 
to be retained on the site during construction works has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Planning Authority and any such scheme as may have 
been approved has been implemented - in order to ensure adequate protection 
for the trees on site during the construction of the development. 
 
(11)  that any tree work which appears to become necessary during the 
implementation of the development shall not be undertaken without the prior 
written consent of the Planning Authority; any damage caused to trees growing 
on the site shall be remedied in accordance with British Standard 3998: 2010 
"Recommendations for Tree Work" before the building hereby approved is first 
occupied - in order to preserve the character and visual amenity of the area. 
 
(12)  that no materials, supplies, plant, machinery, spoil, changes in ground 
levels or construction activities shall be permitted within the protected areas 
specified in the aforementioned scheme of tree protection without the written 
consent of the Planning Authority and no fire shall be lit in a position where the 
flames could extend to within 5 metres of foliage, branches or trunks - in order to 
ensure adequate protection for the trees on site during the construction of the 
development. 
 
(13)  That no development shall be undertaken unless provision has been made 
within the application site for the segregation, storage, collection and and 
disposal of residential refuse in accordance with a scheme which has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority - in order to 
preserve the amenity of the neighbourhood and in the interests of public health. 
 
(14)  that no development pusuant to this grant of planning permission shall be 
undertaken unless a scheme detailing compliance with the Council's 'Low and 
Zero Carbon Buildings' supplementary guidance has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority, and any recommended measures 
specified within that scheme for the reduction of carbon emissions have been 
implemented in full – to ensure that this development complies with requirements 
for reductions in carbon emissions pecified in the City Council's relevant 
published Supplementary Guidance document, 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings'. 
 
(15) that no development pursuant to the planning permission shall take place, 
nor shall any port of the development hereby approved be occupied, unless there 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority, a 
detailed scheme of site and plot boudnary enclosures for the entire development 
gereby granted planning permission. None of the buildings hereby granted 
planning permission shall be occupied unless the said scheme has been 
implemented in its entirelty – in order to preservce the amenity of the 
neighbourhood.  
 
(16)  that no dwellings hereby granted planning permission shall be occupied 
unless the area/areas of public open space inclusing the play area as identified 
on Drawing No. OPL-01C of the plans hereby approved (or such other drawing 
as may be subsequently approved) have been laid out in accordance with a  
 
 

Page 83



scheme which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority. No development pursuant to this planning permission shall take place 
unless such a scheme detailing the manner in which the open space is to be 
managed and maintained has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
planning authority. Such scheme shall include provision for a play area 
comprising at least five items of play equipment and a safety surface. The said 
area shall not thereafter be used for any purpose other than as a Play Area 
- in order to preserve the amenity of the neighbourhood and to ensure the 
timeous provision of play facilities 
 
(17)  That no development shall take place unless there has been submitted to 
and agreed in writing by the planning authority a scheme for the provision of 
public footpaths along the road frontages of the site and the provision of a 
footpath on the south side of the site to the east of Pittengulliles Brae linking to 
the South Deeside Line. Thereafter the public foopaths shall be constructed in full 
with the scheme submitted and by the occuaption of the first unit -  in the 
interests of public road safety and the encouragement of sustainable transport. 
 
(18)  that no part of the development shall be occupied unless a schedule of work 
relating to the upgarding of bus shelters, which may include seating, lighting, 
shelter, raised kerbs and timetable provision for the bus stops on the westbound 
and eastbound bus stop has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the 
planning authority, and subsequenlty the upgrading work has been implemented 
prior to the occupancy of any residential unit implemented - in the interests of 
sustainability and to encourage a reduction in the level of private car trips 
generated by the development 
 
(19)  that no development shall take place unless there has been a submitted to 
and agreed in writing by the plannning authority detailed plans showing visibilty 
splays for all new road junctions, including driveways on to Pittnegullies Brae, 
and thereafter the junctions shall be constructed in full accordance with the 
approved plans. Further to this the layout of internal roads and the front garden 
spaces of the properties be developed without obstruction - in the interest of road 
safety and public safety. 
 
(20)  that no development shall take place unless there has been a submitted to 
and agreed in writing by the plannning authority detailed plans showing measure 
to reduce speeds in the internal road layout - in the interest of road safety and 
public safety. 
 
 
 
 

 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 

Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



LAND ADJ TO NTH DEESIDE ROAD, 
PITTENGULLIES BRAE, PETERCULTER 
 
ERECTION OF 8 NO.UNIT RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT WITH ANCILLARY SITE 
WORKS AND LANDSCAPING    
 
For: Bancon Developments Ltd 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P130229 
Application Date:       21/02/2013 
Officer :                     Donna Laing 
Ward : Lower Deeside (M Boulton/A Malone/M 
Malik) 

Advert  : Can't notify neighbour(s) 
Advertised on: 13/03/2013 
Committee Date: 22 August 2013 
Community Council : Comments 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Willingness to approve, subject to conditions, but to withhold the issue of 
the consent document until the applicant has made a payment to the 
Council of developer contributions towards affordable housing units, 
provision of community facilities and recreation, library, core path 
improvements, healthcare and strategic transport fund. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 97



DESCRIPTION 
The application site, which extends to some 0.65 hectares is located to the south 
of North Deeside Road, close to Pittengullies Brae. The site sits immediately on 
the eastern outskirts of Peterculter and forms part of opportunity site OP59: 
Peterculter East within the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012. The 
opportunity site, OP59: Peterculter East, extends to some 1.72 ha and is noted 
within the local development plan as being capable of providing a development of 
25 homes.  
 
At present the site is a field, used for the grazing of horses. At the North Deeside 
Road, north west of the site, there are two existing dwelling houses, these sit out 
with the site boundary but influence the shape of the development site. These 
two houses, due to the lie of the land, sit below North Deeside Road with the roof 
of each premise visible.  
 
The site has an undulating nature and slopes down from North Deeside Road 
and beyond to the South Deeside line. The site is bound by the stone wall, 
shrubbery and timber fencing facing North Deeside Road, and the existing 
houses which sit on either side of it. Beyond the site boundary within the 
remainder of the opportunity site there are mature trees sitting out with the site 
boundary to the north east and south east, with the canopy of these trees 
spreading onto the site. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
The site was previously zoned as Green Belt and Green Space Network in the 
2008 Aberdeen Local Plan. This as rezoned as an opportunity site with the 2012 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  
 
P130230 – Planning Permission in Principle – erection of 32 no. unit residential 
development with ancillary site works and landscaping – pending 
 
P130845 – Signage application – pending  
 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to erect 8 no. detached dwelling houses with associated works and 
landscaping on the site. The site would be accessed from North Deeside Road 
and would be laid out with four houses along the boundary with North Deeside 
Road and four houses being placed behind these. The houses would sit 
approximately 2m below the level of the North Deeside Road but would still be 
visible. The site has four different house types present. The building line of the 
houses closest to North Deeside Road would follow the building line of house 
belong the north west boundary of the site. The houses would be designed with a 
variety of materials, including render, timber, stone and grey roof tiles. Some 
would have detached garages and others would have garages incorporated 
within their build form. There would be garden space associated with each plot, 
ranging from a minimum of 505m2 up to 780m2. There would be a play area to 
the north east of the site, which would service the 8 dwelling houses and the new 
houses associated with the larger OP59 site.  
 
 
 
 
 Page 98



Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -   
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?130229 

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
A number of pieces of additional information have been received as part of this 
application including a tree report, Drainage Impact Assessment and a number of 
cross sections and photomontages.  
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO SUB-COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the Sub-committee because the Community 
Council has objected to the proposal. Accordingly, the application falls out with 
the scope of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
Roads Project Team – response received – no objection to the application 
provided there are conditions relating to flood routing, bus stop upgrades and 
obstructions within visibility splays.  
Environmental Health – no response received 
Developer Contributions Team – response received - contributions are also 
sought towards affordable housing, provision of community facilities and 
recreation, library, core path improvements, healthcare and strategic transport 
fund. 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) – Response received –
satisfied with the drainage impact assessment and the SUDS pond. A condition 
has been requested to provide a condition survey, preferable through CCTV, of 
the culverted watercourse adjacent to the development and in the immediate 
downstream, to clarify the suitability of the connection of the drainage layout to 
this watercourse. 
Education, Culture & Sport (Archaeology) – response received - No 
development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation 
of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the 
Planning Authority. The programme of archaeological work will include all 
necessary post-excavation and publication work. 
Community Council – response received  

• There has been a lack on consultation with the community council on this 
application, the applicant has engaged with Culter Community Council but 
not Cults, Bieldside and Milltimber Community Council.  

• The OP59 Peterculter site is zoned for 25 units, we object to the proposal 
exceeding this threshold 

• There is concern regarding traffic turning onto and from the site directly 
onto North Deeside Road, especially traffic turning out into North Deeside 
Road in an easterly direction. All traffic should be directed to Pittengullies 
Brae first. 

• SUDS planning for application 130229 and 130230 should be considered 
for the whole site as one. There are existing drainage and sewage 
overflow issues and jointly with Culter Community Council we ask that 
these be resolved via planning gain for this OP site.  

 
 Page 99



REPRESENTATIONS 
5 letters of objection have been received. The objections raised relate to the 
following matters 
  
Infrastructure  
Traffic 
The existing difficult access and egress from Pittengullies Brae would be 
increased,  
Congestion and queuing would increase in the village  
All traffic should be directed to Pittengullies Brae first.  
The creation of cul-de-sacs is not acceptable. The site should be redesigned with 
the creation of a circular route off Pittengullie Brae. The upper section of the site 
will then be at a lower level than proposed. 
The increase in traffic on Pittengullie Brae will be dangerous for the children of 
Camphill. 
 
Services 
The infrastructure cannot cope as it is – public transport, council services, 
schools, health services 
 
Drainage  
SUDS planning for application 130229 and 130230 should be considered for the 
whole site as one. There are existing drainage and sewage overflow issues; we 
ask that these be resolved via planning gain for this OP site.  
 
Impact on Amenity 
Impact on view and attractiveness of Peterculter  
Building on this site will spoil the view of the valley as you come into Peterculter 
 
Disappointed the SR4 zoning has been lost; ribbon development and loss of 
open space/parkland will reduce the attractiveness of Peterculter  
 
A retaining wall and 6 ft fence should be erected on the south east boundary of 
423 North Deeside Road to provide a degree of privacy, prevent overlooking and 
reduce visual/noise impact from the play park 
 
Noise 

The noise from the building works will cause huge trauma to the children 
attending Camphill School and limit their quality of life.  
 
Ground levels 

The ground levels will be raised significantly and the proposed dwellings would 
completely overpower the existing houses in close proximity to the site. The earth 
works to raise plots 5 and 8 are extensive and would not allow plots 1 and 4 to 
enjoy the view from the naturally sloping site 
 
Trees  
The large Ash tree would be required to be removed to accommodate the 
footpath in plot 9. The footpath should be re-routed. The Hawthorne tree at the 
north of plot 4 should be retained as it provides a level of privacy and reduces 
noise from the North Deeside Road 
 

Page 100



The type and placement of any trees should be considered as they would have 
the potential to obscure the outlook of 423 North Deeside Road should they grow 
too tall 
 
Facilities 
The play area should be bigger and should cover proposed plot 22. A retaining 
wall and 6 ft fence should be erected on the south east boundary of 423 North 
Deeside Road to provide a degree of privacy, prevent overlooking and reduce 
visual/noise impact from the play park. 
 
Intensification of site  
The number of units, 33, does not comply with the 25 allocated within Aberdeen 
local development plan.  
 
Other  
The 30mph speed limit should be relocated past Avondow to the corner before 
Kippie Lodge.  
 
PLANNING POLICY 
National Policy and Guidance  
Scottish Planning Policy  
Paragraph 66 of the Scottish Planning Policy outlines there is a commitment from 
the Scottish Government to increase the supply of new homes and the planning 
system should contribute to raising the rate of new housebuilding by identifying a 
generous supply of land for the provision of a range of housing in the right 
places.  
 
Strategic Development Plan  
Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan  
Sets strategic growth and policy areas for the City and Shire and outlines by 
2030 there are to be 36,000 new homes proposed for Aberdeen City. The land 
allocations are set out within the local development plan.  
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan  
Policy LR1: Land Release Policy 
Part A – Phase 1 Release Development: Housing 2007 -2016; and employment 
2007 -2023 
Housing and employment development on sites allocated in Phase 1 will be 
approved in principle within areas designated for housing or employment. 
Development on an allocated site or in close proximity to an allocated site that 
jeopardises the full provision of the allocation will be refused.  
 
Policy I1: Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions 
Development must be accompanied by the infrastructure, services and facilities 
required to support new or expanding communities and the scale and type of 
developments proposed. Where development either individually or cumulatively 
will place additional demands on community facilities or infrastructure that would 
necessitate new facilities or exacerbate deficiencies in existing provision, the 
Council will require the developer to meet or contribute to the cost of providing or 
improving such infrastructure or facilities. 
 
 
 Page 101



New infrastructure will either be provided by the developer or through financial 
contributions.  
 
Policy T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development  
New developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been 
taken to minimise the traffic generated.  
 
Maximum parking standards for a number of modes of transport are set out in 
Supplementary Guidance on Transport and Accessibility and details the 
standards that different types of development should provide.  
 
Policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking 
To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with 
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting. 
Factors such as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation, details, the 
proportions of building elements, together with the spaces around buildings, 
including streets, squares, open space, landscaping and boundary treatments, 
will be considered in assessing that contribution. 
 
Policy D2: Design and Amenity 
Policy D2 sets out a series of criteria for new development, intended to ensure 
that an appropriate level of amenity can be secured for residents of both that new 
development and neighbouring land and buildings. 
 
Policy D3: Sustainable and Active Travel 
New development will be designed in order to minimise travel by private car, 
improve access to services and promote healthy lifestyles by encouraging active 
travel. Development will maintain and enhance permeability, ensuring that 
opportunities for sustainable and active travel are both protected and improved. 
Access to, and movement within and between, new and existing developments 
will prioritise transport modes in the following order – walking, cycling, public 
transport, car and other motorised vehicles.  
 
Policy D6: Landscape 
Development will not be acceptable unless it avoids: 
 
1. significantly adversely affecting landscape character and elements which 

contribute to, or provide, a distinct ‘sense of place’ which point to being either 
in or around Aberdeen or a particular part of it; 

 
2.  obstructing important views of the City’s townscape, landmarks and features 

when seen from busy and important publicly accessible vantage points such 
as roads, railways, recreation areas and pathways and particularly from the 
main city approaches; 

 
3. disturbance, loss or damage to important recreation, wildlife or woodland 

resources or to the physical links between them; 
 
4. sprawling onto important or necessary green spaces or buffers between places 

or communities with individual identities, and those which can provide 
opportunities for countryside activities. 

 
 Page 102



Development should avoid significant adverse impacts upon existing landscape 
elements, including linear and boundary features or other components, which 
contribute to local amenity, and provide opportunities for conserving, restoring or 
enhancing them. 
 
Policy H5: Affordable Housing  
Housing developments of five units or more are required to contribute no less 
than 25% of the total number of units as affordable housing.  
 
Policy NE4: Open Space Provision in New Development  
The City Council will require the provision of at least 2.8 hectares per 1,000 
people of meaningful and useful public open space in new residential 
development.  
 
Communal or public open space should be provided in all residential 
developments.  
 
Policy NE5: Trees and Woodlands 
There is a presumption against all activities and development that will result in 
the loss of or damage to established trees and woodlands that contribute 
significantly to nature conservation, landscape character or local amenity, 
including ancient and semi-natural woodland which is irreplaceable. Appropriate 
measures should be taken for the protection and long term management of 
existing trees and new planting both during and after construction.  
 
Policy NE6: Flooding and Drainage 
Development will not be permitted if:  
 
1   it would increase the risk of flooding:- 
 

a) By reducing the ability of the functional flood plain to store and convey 
water; 
b) Through the discharge of additional surface water; or 
c) By harming flood defences. 

 
2  it would be at risk itself from flooding 
 
Where more than then 10 homes or greater than 100m2 floorspace is proposed, 
the developer will be required to submit a Drainage Impact Assessment. Surface 
water drainage associated with development must:  
 
1   be the most appropriate available in terms of SUDS; and 
 
2   avoid flooding and pollution both during and after construction.  
 
Policy NE9: Access and Informal Recreation  
New development should not compromise the integrity of existing or potential 
recreational opportunities including access rights, core paths, other paths and 
rights of way. Wherever appropriate, developments should include new or 
improved provision for public access, permeability and/or links to green space for 
recreation and active travel. 
 
 Page 103



Policy R6: Waste Management Requirements for New Development 
Housing developments should have sufficient space for the storage of residual, 
recyclable and compostable wastes. Details of storage facilities and means of 
collection must be included as part of any planning application for development 
which would generate waste.  
 
Policy R7: Low and Zero Carbon Buildings 
All new buildings, in meeting building regulations energy requirements, must 
install low and zero carbon generating technology to reduce the predicted carbon 
dioxide emissions by at least 15% below 2007 building standards.  
 
Supplementary Guidance  
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual  
The purpose of this Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual is to 
provide clear guidance on the methodology used to identify infrastructure 
requirements and the criteria that should be used to calculate developer 
contributions to support new development. 
 
Transport and Accessibility Supplementary Guidance  
The guidance examines a number of transport and accessibility issues that may 
have to be considered as part of a planning application.  
 
Affordable Housing   
Outlines affordable housing provision and the delivery of this on site or by 
securing a contribution.  
 
Open Space  
Outlines the different types of open space and the ratios required for different 
sizes of development 
 
Trees and Woodlands 
Outlines policy and legislation on trees and protection measures required during 
construction periods and outlines the requirements within a tree survey. 
 
Drainage Impact Assessment  
The guidance provides information on the requirements on the submission of 
Drainage Impact Assessment and emphasises the requirements for SUDS. 
 
Waste Management  
Developments should provide enough space for the storage and collection of 
waste access to such facilities.  
 
Low and Zero Carbon Buildings  
The purpose of this supplementary guidance is to provide the methodology for 
developers to demonstrate compliance with Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
policy R7.  
 
EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning  
 
 

Page 104



acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Principle of Development  
Scottish Planning Policy outlines a commitment to increase the supply of new 
housing and the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan outlines by 2030 there 
are to be 36,000 new homes proposed for Aberdeen City. The land allocations 
are set out within the local development plan. The principle of residential 
development on this site will, in the first instance, be established by considering 
how it relates to the zoning of the site, Policy LR1: Land Release Policy. The site 
falls within Opportunity Site 59: Peterculter East for the development of 25 homes 
within the first phase of development from 2007 to 2016. Therefore, housing 
development on this site will be approved in principle.   
 
Scale and pattern of development, design and amenity  
Scale and pattern of development 
As the proposed site sits to the eastern edge of Peterculter the pattern of 
development surrounding the site is, for the most part, one of large plots and a 
high degree of open space. The zoning surrounding the north east and south 
east edges of the site are Policy NE2: Green Belt and Policy NE1: Green Space 
Network. To the north west and south west of the site the zoning is Policy H1: 
Residential. The historic pattern of development to the eastern edge of 
Peterculter along the southern side of North Deeside Road, comprises plots with 
houses in close proximity to North Deeside Road and large gardens running 
southwards, many towards and down to the South Deeside Line. This pattern of 
development has been broken through the creation of Pittengullies Brae and 
Pittengullies Circle, to the west of the proposed site, in which the pattern of 
development is one of much smaller plots with one and two storey detached and 
semi-detached properties. The two properties in closest proximity to the site also 
do not follow the expected pattern of development as the garden area associated 
with these two sites is square rather than long and linear and stretching 
southwards. The layout of the 8 units in this proposal would follow the modern 
pattern of development of Pittengullies Brae and Pittengullies Circle more so than 
the historic pattern of development. The houses would also sit at a lower level 
than the road, following the pattern of the two neighbouring properties in closest 
proximity to the site.  
 
The relationship between the proposed 8 units on the site and the wider OP59 
site has also been addressed through the provision of cross sections and 
photomontages which show that although there may be a height difference 
between the 8 units on this site and those indicative dwellings located within the 
OP59 site, there would not be significant concern regarding the dominance of 
these 8 units on the surrounding area, due to the orientation and design of the 
houses, the landscaping and the boundary treatment.  
 
Design and amenity 
The layout of the houses would follow the criteria as outlined in Policy D2: Design 
and Amenity of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. The houses would have 
public face to the street and a private face to an enclosed garden, with residents  
 
 

Page 105



having access to sitting out areas. The design of the houses would ensure there 
is an open frontage along the street. The materials used are acceptable. The 
area of garden ground proposed with each dwelling is sufficient in area, with 
those units occupying plots 5-8 capturing the greatest sunlight due to their 
orientation. The boundary treatment surrounding the site comprise, to the North 
Deeside Road a 900mm high stonework wall with cope and 900mm high timber 
fence. The elevations of the houses facing the street would be open with 1.8m 
timber fencing starting typically mid way along the side elevations to create a 
sense of a public front and a private rear. To boundary treatment to the play 
areas again would comprise 1.8m timber fencing with the exception of the access 
to the link path with would have a 0.9m high timber fence. This, along with the 
open nature of the street elevation of the houses, would allow for passive 
surveillance along the path and to the play area. The proposal therefore accords 
with Policy D2: Design and Amenity of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
and Policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan  
 
Open space 
Open space provision has been included within the proposal through the 
inclusion of a play park to the north of the application site. The open space audit 
has deemed that for every 1000 residents there should be approximately 2.8 ha 
of open space. The open space provision is to be calculated on a ratio of this 
requirement. With the house type’s proposed and average number of people per 
dwelling it would be expected that up to 32 people could be living on site once 
completed. The expected outdoor space would therefore be approximately 
0.0896m2. The playarea occupies 0.0832m2. Although there is a slight shortfall 
in open space the site is in close proximity to an area of recreational space, the 
South Deeside Line, therefore it is not considered that this small deficit in open 
space would cause significant concern. The proposal would therefore accord with 
Policy NE4: Open space provision in new development and the supplementary 
guidance: open space can be undertaken. 
 
Landscape and Trees and Woodlands 
The landscape character of the site is noted for its undulating nature and the 
prominence of mature trees which are located out with the site boundary, and in 
particular those trees on the north east and south east sides of the larger 
opportunity site area. The development of these 8 no. units would not lead to the 
disturbance, loss or damage to important recreation, wildlife or woodland 
resources or to the physical links between them. The existing use of the site does 
not relate to these categories, however, the South Deeside Line does run in close 
proximity to the site, approximately 65m, from the southern edge of the site. The 
enjoyment of the South Deeside Line would not be detrimentally impacted by the 
location of houses. The impact on landscape character and sense of place can 
be assessed through the cross sections and photomontages which have been 
submitted as part of the application. These show the relationship between the 
proposed houses, the gradient of the site and have provided indicative proposals 
for the remained of the OP59 site. These elements show the landscape character 
of the area would be altered due to the erection of the houses, yet not to the 
detriment of the sense of place as this would be maintained through the elevation 
levels of the site and the relationship between these differing levels. The  
 
 

Page 106



application would modify the view from the North Deeside Road and from the 
South Deeside Line however, the proposal would not obstruct important views of 
the City’s townscape, landmarks and features. This is especially true during the 
growing season of the trees surrounding the site which would block views into the 
site. The proposal would not sprawl into a green space buffer, the principle of 
development has been outlined through the change in status of this area to an 
opportunity site through the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012. The 
proposal therefore would accord with Policy D6: Landscape of the Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan.  
 
The applicant has provided a tree survey in support of this application, which also 
covers the whole OP59 site area. The majority of the existing trees and woodland 
would be retained. The Council’s Arboriculture Planner has stated no objection to 
the proposed development, and has requested that certain conditions be 
attached to any grant of planning permission, relating to landscaping/tree planting 
and measures for the protection during construction of those trees to be retained. 
Taking these matters into account, the proposal is considered to accord with the 
relevant provisions of Policy NE5: Trees and Woodlands of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan and the Trees and Woodlands Supplementary Guidance.  
 
Drainage/Flood Risk  
A drainage impact assessment has been submitted for the site, which includes 
SUDS pond details. The SUDS pond located with this development would be out 
with the application boundary of the site but would be located within land under 
control of the applicant and would also be placed within the OP59 site and within 
the boundary of the Planning Permission in Principle application which also 
covers the land these 8 units are located on. The drainage impact assessment 
and SUDS proposal has been assessed by the Council’s Flooding Team and by 
the Council’s Roads Project Team. The flooding team is satisfied with the 
drainage impact assessment and SUDS pond. A condition has been requested to 
provide a condition survey, preferable through CCTV, of the culverted 
watercourse adjacent to the development and in the immediate downstream, to 
clarify the suitability of the connection of the drainage layout to this watercourse. 
The Roads Project Team has also assessed the application and have no 
objections.  
 
Policy NE6: Flooding and Drainage of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and 
the supplementary guidance: Drainage Impact Assessments have been satisfied 
through the production of the drainage impact assessment and by conditions 
attached relating to the condition survey of the culvert and the production of a 
construction management plan.  
 
Transport and Access 
The layout proposes access into the site from North Deeside Road. The proposal 
has been assessed by the Council’s Roads Project Team who has no objection 
to the proposed development. The car parking provided has been deemed to be 
satisfactory and accords with the Councils Supplementary Guidance: Transport 
and Accessibility. 
 
 
 
 

Page 107



The footpath within the site is proposed to join with the wider area of indicative 
development to the south of the site, which would once completed proved access 
to the South Deeside Line. Access to public transport has also been addressed 
and upgrading of the bus stop. Taking these matters into account, it is considered 
that the proposal demonstrates accordance with Policy T2: Managing the 
Transport Impact of Development of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and 
with the Transport and Accessibility supplementary guidance.  
 
There are 2 core paths in close proximity to the site, core path 66: Deeside Way 
runs approximately 80m from the south of the site and core path 76: Culter 
House Road to River Dee runs approximately 37m to the west of the site. The 
proximity of the site to the core path network would mean there is a noticeable 
choice of modes of movement to and from the site, and the ability of improving 
provision for public access and links to green space for recreation and active 
travel, thereby the proposal complying with Policy NE9: Access and Informal 
Recreation of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and with Policy D3: 
Sustainable and Active Travel of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 
 
Developer Contributions 
The site has been assessed by the Developer Contribution Team who has 
advised, in order to comply with Policy I1: Infrastructure Delivery and Developer 
Contributions of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, Policy H5: Affordable 
Housing of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, Infrastructure and 
Development Contributions supplementary guidance and the Affordable Housing 
supplementary guidance developer contributions/affordable housing provision 
would be required. The development of the 8 units is tied to the legal agreement 
of the Planning Permission in Principle (P130230). Agreement in principle has 
been reached with the applicant and a legal agreement is required in order to 
ensure that this is appropriately controlled. It is recommended that permission is 
withheld pending the conclusion of a legal agreement in relation to developer 
contributions for affordable housing provision, community facilities and 
recreation, library, core path improvements, health care and strategic transport 
fund contributions.  
 
Low and Zero Carbon Buildings 
The application does not include details of how Low and Zero Carbon Generating 
Technologies will be incorporated into the proposed development, however, such 
details can be obtained through the use of an appropriate condition. The 
proposal cannot be assessed against Policy R7: Low and Zero Carbon Buildings 
of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and the Low and Zero Carbon 
Buildings Supplementary Guidance at this stage.  
 
Waste 
Policy R6: Waste Management Requirements for New Developments and the 
Waste Management supplementary guidance cannot be assessed at this stage, 
however, such details can be obtained through the use of an appropriate 
condition. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 108



Material Planning Considerations raised by objectors 
1 Infrastructure  
Traffic  
Is it likely that due to the development of 8 units there would be a small increase 
in traffic from and to the site. The access to the site would be from North Deeside 
Road. It is not expected there would be an increase in traffic on Pittengullies Brae 
from the 8 unit development. The application has been subject to consultation 
with the Council’s Roads Projects Team who has deemed they have no objection 
to the proposal. The site is located within walking distance to amenities within the 
Peterculter District Centre and is located next to a bus stop, to which 
improvement are proposed, a cycle route and to Core Paths which will encourage 
more sustainable modes of transport.  
 
Services  
These have been assessed by Developer Contributions and are discussed in the 
section Developer Contributions  
 
Drainage  
The drainage has been discussed under the section titled Drainage/Floodrisk 
 
2 Impact on Amenity 
Impact on views and attractiveness of Peterculter 
The views and impact on landscape character were discussed under the section 
of the report titled landscape and trees and woodlands. The zoning of the site 
has been discussed under the section Principle of Development 
 
Noise 

The site is buffered from the Camphill Estate by the trees surrounding the 
Camphill Estate, the bunding and trees surrounding the South Deeside Line and 
there is a distance of distance, 116m from the edge of the site to the edge of 
Camphill Estate. The impact of noise is not a relevant planning consideration in 
determining the application. The principle of development has been established 
on the site through the land allocation. It is noted there would disturbance in the 
immediate vicinity of the site, yet it is the remit of environmental health to deal 
with issues of excessive noise. There would be a condition attached requiring 
landscaping, therefore there is the possibility of an increase in the screening due 
to the proposal. 
 
Ground Levels 

The ground levels are discussed under the section titled scale and pattern of 
development and Landscape and Trees and Woodlands. 
 
Trees 
The Ash tree is out with the red line boundary of this site and thus not affected by 
this development. The Hawthorne tree (number 19) is to be retained. The 
landscaping of the site is to be conditioned.  
 
Facilities 
The play area has been discussed under the section entitled open space. The 
boundary treatment has been discussed under design and amenity. 
 
 
 Page 109



3. Intensification of site  
The application is for 8 units not 33, the 33 units relates to application P130230 
for planning permission in principle. 
 
4. Other 
The repositioning of the 30mph sign is not a material planning consideration.  
 
Material Planning Considerations raised by Community Council 
The applicant is not obliged to consult with the community council as this is not a 
major application.  
The number of units proposed is 8 not 33, the 33 units relates to application 
P130230 for planning permission in principle. 
The application has been assessed the Council’s Roads Project Team and traffic 
concerns have been discussed under the heading transport and access.   
The SUDS issues have been addressed under the section titled Drainage/Flood 
Risk 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Willingness to approve, subject to conditions, but to withhold the issue of 
the consent document until the applicant has made a payment to the 
Council of developer contributions towards affordable housing units, 
provision of community facilities and recreation, library, core path 
improvements, healthcare and strategic transport fund. 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The development hereby approved is of an appropriate type for the land use 
zoning, LR1: Land Release Policy of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  
The proposal has been assessed by Developer Contributions who have outlined 
a number of financial and physical contributions required, the proposal would 
therefore accord with Policy I1: Infrastructure Delivery and Developer 
Contributions of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, Policy H5: Affordable 
Housing of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, Infrastructure and 
Development Contributions supplementary guidance and the Affordable Housing 
supplementary guidance. The proposal accords with Policy D1: Architecture and 
Placemaking of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and with Policy D2: 
Design and Amenity of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, as the materials, 
siting, orientation, and amenity space provided along with the separation of public 
and private space are deemed to be acceptable. The proposal would accord with 
the principles of Policy D6: Landscape of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
and with the relevant provisions of Policy NE5: Trees and Woodlands of the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan and the Trees and Woodlands 
Supplementary Guidance. The proposal is subject to a condition relating to the 
condition survey of the culvert, yet the indicative drainage layout and the SUDS 
proposal would accord with Policy NE6: Flooding and Drainage of the Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan and the supplementary guidance: Drainage Impact 
Assessments. Access arrangements are subject to assessment against Policy 
T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan with further consideration required of the Transport and 
Accessibility supplementary guidance, Policy NE9: Access and Informal  
 
 
 

Page 110



Recreation of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and  Policy D3: Sustainable 
and Active Travel of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. Further information 
would be required to comply with Policy R7: Low and Zero Carbon Buildings of 
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and Low and Zero Carbon Building 
supplementary guidance and also with Policy R6: Waste Management 
Requirements for New Developments and Waste Management Supplementary 
Guidance. The proposal accords with the relevant provisions of the Development 
Plan. No matters raised in representations or through consultation have been of 
sufficient weight to warrant determination other than in accordance with the 
Development Plan.  
 
CONDITIONS 
 
it is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
(1)  notwithstanding the drainage plan submitted, that no development shall take 
place within the application site until the applicant has carried out and submitted 
to, and been approved in writing by, the planning authority (i) a condition survey, 
preferably through CCTV, of the culverted watercourse adjacent to the 
development and in the immediate downstream;and (ii) an assessment of flood 
routing; and, if required, an updated drainage impact assessment, Sustainable 
Urban Drainage System and outline any flood routing mitigation measures 
required. Thereafter the develompent shall not be occupied unless built in full 
accordance with the details approved - in order to clarify the suitability of 
connection to the watercourse, to safeguard water qualities in adjacent 
watercourses, to ensure that the proposed development can be adequately 
drained and to ensure that the 200 year rainfall event flooding can be 
accommodated. 
 
(2)  that no development shall take place unless a scheme detailing all external 
finishing materials to the roof and walls of the development hereby approved has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the planning authority and 
thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details so 
agreed - in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
(3)  that no development shall take place within the application site until the 
applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work 
which shall include post-excavation and publication work in accordance with a 
written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and 
approved by the planning authority - in the interests of protecting items of 
historical importance as may exist within the application site. 
 
(4)  that no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved 
shall be carried out unless there has been submitted to and approved in writing 
for the purpose by the planning authority a further detailed scheme of 
landscaping for the site, which scheme shall include indications of all existing 
trees and landscaped areas on the land, and details of any to be retained,  
 
 
 
 

Page 111



together with measures for their protection in the course of development, and the 
proposed areas of tree/shrub planting including details of numbers, densities, 
locations, species, sizes and stage of maturity at planting. Further to this within 
plot 8 four heavy standard trees are to be planted in the southern corners of the 
site - in the interests of the amenity of the area and to minmise the visual impact 
to changes in the ground levels. 
 
(5)  that all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved scheme of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following the 
completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be planted, or 
in accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and approved in 
writing for the purpose by the planning authority - in the interests of the amenity 
of the area. 
 
(6)  that no development shall take place unless a plan showing those trees to be 
removed and those to be retained and a scheme for the protection of all trees to 
be retained on the site during construction works has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Planning Authority and any such scheme as may have 
been approved has been implemented - in order to ensure adequate protection 
for the trees on site during the construction of the development. 
 
(7)  that any tree work which appears to become necessary during the 
implementation of the development shall not be undertaken without the prior 
written consent of the Planning Authority; any damage caused to trees growing 
on the site shall be remedied in accordance with British Standard 3998: 2010 
"Recommendations for Tree Work" before the building hereby approved is first 
occupied - in order to preserve the character and visual amenity of the area. 
 
(8)  that no materials, supplies, plant, machinery, spoil, changes in ground levels 
or construction activities shall be permitted within the protected areas specified in 
the aforementioned scheme of tree protection without the written consent of the 
Planning Authority and no fire shall be lit in a position where the flames could 
extend to within 5 metres of foliage, branches or trunks - in order to ensure. 
adequate protection for the trees on site during the construction of the 
development. 
 
(9)  that on each house plot there shall be planted two trees of species to be 
agreed in writing with the Planning Authority. These trees are to be planted at 
half-standard size or larger. Planting shall take place in the first planting season 
after completion of each house and any trees which within a period of 5 years 
from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 
a similar size and species unless the Planning Authority gives written consent to 
any variation - in order to preserve the amenity of the neighbourhood. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 112



(10)  That the use hereby granted planning permission shall not take place 
unless provision has been made within the application site for refuse storage and 
disposal in accordance with a scheme which has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority – in order to preserve the amenity of 
the neighbourhood and in the interests of public health. 
 
(11)  that the building hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a scheme 
detailing compliance with the Council's 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings' 
supplementary guidance has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
planning authority, and any recommended measures specified within that 
scheme for the reduction of carbon emissions have been implemented in full - to 
ensure that this development complies with requirements for reductions in carbon 
emissions pecified in the City Council's relevant published Supplementary 
Guidance document, 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings'. 
 
(12)  that no dwellings hereby granted planning permission shall be occupied 
unless the area/areas of public open space inclusing the play area as identified 
on Drawing No. DPL-01B of the plans hereby approved (or such other drawing as 
may be subsequently approved) have been laid out in accordance with a scheme 
which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. No 
development pursuant to this planning permission shall take place unless such a 
scheme detailing the manner in which the open space is to be managed and 
maintained has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning 
authority. Such scheme shall include provision for a play area comprising at least 
five items of play equipment and a safety surface. The said area shall not 
thereafter be used for any purpose other than as a Play Area - in order to 
preserve the amenity of the neighbourhood and to ensure the timeous provision 
of play facilities unless the area/areas of public open space as identified. 
 
(13)  that no part of the development shall be occupied unless a schedule of work 
relating to the upgarding of bus shelters, seating, lighting, shelter, raised kerbs 
and timetable provision for the bus stops on the westbound and eastbound bus 
stop has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the planning authority, 
and subsequenlty the upgrading work has been implemented prior to the 
occupancy of any residential unit implemented - in the interests of sustainability 
and to encourage a reduction in the level of private car trips generated by the 
development 
 
 
  

Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



 
EDGEHILL HOUSE, NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, 
MILLTIMBER 
 
REPLACE EXISTING HOUSE AND 
CONSTRUCT FIVE ADDITIONAL DWELLINGS 
WITH ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE, 
IMPROVED ACCESSES AND TREE 
PROTECTION WORKS    
 
For: Truedeal Securities Ltd 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P130211 
Application Date:       19/02/2013 
Officer :                     Gavin Evans 
Ward : Lower Deeside (M Boulton/A Malone/M 
Malik) 

Advert  : Can't notify neighbour(s) 
Advertised on: 06/03/2013 
Committee Date: 22 August 2013 
Community Council : No response 
received 
 

 

 RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Willingness to approve subject to conditions, with consent being withheld 
pending satisfactory conclusion of a planning agreement relating to the 
payment of monies in connection with developer contributions and 
affordable housing provision 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 123



DESCRIPTION 
The application site, which extends to some 1.7ha/17,000sqm, is located on the 
edge of the Milltimber settlement, to the west of Aberdeen in the Deeside valley. 
The site  lies between Culter House Road, to the north, and North Deeside Road, 
to the south, and currently comprises a single detached dwellinghouse and 
associated detached garage, set within extensive grounds. The site can presently 
be accessed via a winding driveway which links the house to both Culter House 
Road and North Deeside Road. The majority of the site does not benefit from any 
direct road frontage, being set back behind other residential plots. To the north of 
the site lie 45 Culterhouse Road (Edgehill Cottage) and 47 Culterhouse Road 
(Gardenside), both detached residential properties set within generous plots. To 
the south, there are four detached dwellinghouses set between the application 
site and North Deeside Road, three of which are on the western side of the 
access driveway (250, 250A & 252) and one on the eastern side (248). To the 
east of the site, beyond the winding driveway, lies a further area of undeveloped 
woodland, which does not form part of the application site but is in the applicants’ 
ownership. Beyond that woodland lies Bellenden Walk, a roughly surfaced 
road/track which runs between Culter House Road and North Deeside Road. 
Bollards at a central point prevent through access, with the properties arranged 
along Bellenden walk being accessed by one or other of North Deeside Road 
and Culter House Road. To the west of the application site lies land allocated as 
Green Belt in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, including ‘Fairgarth’, the 
former home of the Aberdeen International School, which was subject to 
compulsary purchase in connection with the construction of the Aberdeen 
Western Peripheral Route, the path of which takes in land adjacent to the 
western site boundary. 
 
The building within the application site itself is a large 1 ½ storey detached 
dwellinghouse, constructed in granite and cement and featuring a hipped roof 
with projecting pitched roof gables the upper sections of which are clad in 
hanging tiles. The existing dwellinghouse is understood to have been constructed 
in the late 1960s, occupying part of the footprint of the Victorian granite mansion 
that had previously been present. An area of the grounds immediately adjacent to 
the existing dwelling forms its principal garden grounds, and is distinct from the 
remainder of the site, being free of trees and more traditionally landscaped and 
laid to grass. Beyond a retaining wall, the wider site is less formally landscaped 
and features a number of established trees, particularly along the western and 
northern boundaries. Of the four dwellings to the south, the three on the western 
side of the access driveway were developed in the 1970s, the land having 
previously been part of the Edgehill House plot. The house on the eastern side of 
that driveway is Edgehill Lodge, a traditional granite cottage which was formerly 
part of the original Edgehill House site. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
Application P110038, submitted in January 2011, proposed the demolition of the 
existing lodge, which lies to the south of the application site, adjacent to North 
Deeside Road, and the erection of a replacement dwelling. Planning permission 
was granted under the Council’s scheme of delegation in March 2011. The 
replacement dwellilng approved at that time is similar in its design and styling to 
that currently proposed. 
 
 
 Page 124



PROPOSAL 
This application proposes the demolition of the existing Woodbank House and 
the construction of 6 houses within the wider site. The proposed dwellings would 
be arranged around an extended part of the existing driveway, each inclined to 
face the turning circle which forms the centre of the space.  
 
The dwellings themselves would be substantial 2-storey houses, set within 
generous plots ranging from 0.403 acres/1630sqm to 0.796 acres/3221sqm. 
Each of the houses would be predominantly finished in traditional wet-dash 
render, with smooth cement render also used alongside synthetic granite margins 
and entabliture. Coursed granite stonework would be used in the construction of 
a central projecting feature of each house, which would sit proud of the face of 
the dwelling and incorporate the main doorway and an upper floor bedroom 
window. Windows would feature stained timber frames with lead astragals 
fprming a cross-hatched fenestration pattern. Each of the dwellings would be 
constructed with a hipped  natural slate roof, with painted timber fascias and 
soffits. Adjoining each dwelling would be a double garage, each of which would 
feature a hipped, slated roof. 
 
Access to the site would be taken primarily from the south via North Deeside 
Road, with a new vehicular access constructed. The existing vehicular access 
from North Deeside Road would become a pedestrian only access, while the 
existing access from Culter House Road, to the north, would have bollards 
installed to close off vehicular access, thereby preventing a through route. A 
footway would be incorporated adjacent to the access point from North Deeside 
Road, but discontinued thereafter, giving way to a shared surface area. The 
access road would be single track, with passing places provided. 
 
Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -   
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?130211 

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO SUB-COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the Sub-committee because a total of 6 
letters of objection have been received. Accordingly, the application falls outwith 
the scope of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Project Team – Accept parking provision in accordance with Council 
standards. Note and accept the proposals for access to the development site, 
provided that delivery of the visbility splay demonstrated at the access onto North 
Deeside Road be secured via a condition to attached to any consent. Also 
require that the relocation of an existing bus stop on the northern side of North 
Deeside Road be required by condition, in order that the visibility splay may be 
free of any obstruction. Highlight necessary contributions to the Council’s  
 
 

Page 125



Sustainable Transport Fund (STF), which may be obtained through use of an 
appropriate legal agreement. The submitted Drainage Impact Assessment is 
noted, and it is requested that a condition be attached to prohibit development 
until such time as the drainage approach proposed has been agreed with 
Scottish Water and SEPA. 
Environmental Health – No response received. 
Developer Contributions Team – The development is required to make 
developer contributions commensurate with the scale and impact of the 
development proposed, and as set out in the Council’s Infrastructure and 
Developer Contributions Manual. Contributions are required in relation to 
Affordable Housing, community facilities, sports and recreation, libraries, and 
core paths network. 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) -  Require full details of 
surface water drainage proposals. This can be obtained through use of an 
appropriate condition attached to any consent. 
Education, Culture & Sport (Archaeology) – No response received. 
Community Council – No response received. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
6 letters of representation have been received. The objections raised relate to the 
following matters – 
 

1. The site is formerly green belt, and this green wedge between Milltimber 
and Peterculter would be compromised by development, increasing overall 
housing density. 

2. The site makes an important contributon to the landscape setting of this 
part of the city by virtue of its woodland character. 

3. The proposal to create a third access point, onto North Deeside Road, 
would create an increased public safety hazard. The existing access is 
hazardous due to inadequate sight lines at the junction with Bellenden 
Walk. Suggests that access be restricted to a single point, via Culter 
House Road. Bollards across the single-track access road could restrict 
through traffic. 

4. The proposal represents overdevelopment of the site, as it exceeds the 
allocation specified in the ALDP. 

5. Construction traffic should be restricted to the northern access, via 
Culterhouse Road, on safety and amenity grounds. 

6. The site is partially covered by a Tree Protection Order. This should be 
extended across the entire site to allow statutory protection to the existing 
trees and woodland. 

7. Members are urged to undertake a site visit. 
8. Objection is stated in relation to the submitted tree report, as it fails to take 

into account the annoyance, loss of light and property damage caused by 
these trees. The removal of certain trees is requested, based on their 
impact on Bellenden walk. 

9. The proposed development would contravene the City Council’s 
presumption against feu splitting. 

10. The trees to be retained should be protected by planning conditions and 
by clauses in the deeds for the properties or by Tree Protection Orders. 

 
 
 Page 126



PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) 
 Paragraph 82 of SPP highlights the important contribution that infill sites within 
existing settlements can make to the supply of housing land. It further states that 
infill sites should respect the scale, form and density of the surroundings and 
enhance the character and amenity of the community.  
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP) 
 
Policy LR1: Land Release Policy 
Housing and employment development on sites allocated in Phase 1 will be 
approved in principle within areas designated for housing or employment. 
Development on an allocated site or in close proximity to an allocation that 
jeopardises the full provision of that allocation will be refused. 
 
Policy I1: Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions 
Sets out that development must be accompanied by the infrastructure, services 
and facilities required to support new or expanded communities and the scale 
and type of developments proposed. Where development either individually or 
cumulatively will place additional demands on community facilities or 
infrastructure that would necessitate new facilities or exacerbate deficiencies in 
existing provision, the Council will require the developer to meet or contribute to 
the cost of providing or improving such infrastructure or services. 
 
Policy T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development 
New developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been 
taken to minimise the traffic generated. 
 
Maximum car parking standards are set out in Supplementary Guidance on 
Transport and Accessibility and detail the standards that different types of 
development should provide. 
 
Policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking 
To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with 
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting. 
Factors such as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation, details, the 
proportions of building elements, together with the spaces around buildings, 
including streets, squares, open space, landscaping and boundary treatments, 
will be considered in assessing that contribution. 
 
Policy D2: Design and Amenity 
Policy D2 sets out a series of criteria for new development, intended to ensure 
that an appropriate level of amenity can be secured for residents of both that new 
development and neighbouring land and buildings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 127



Policy H3: Density 
States that the City Council will seek an appropriate density of development on 
all housing allocations. It is further stated that all residential developments of over 
one hectare shall meet a minimum density of 30 homes per hectare; have 
consideration of the site’s characteristics and those of the surrounding area; and 
create and attractive reidential environment and safeguard living conditions within 
the development. 
 
Policy H5: Affordable Housing 
States that developments of five units or more are required to contribute no less 
than 25% of the total number of units as affordable housing.  
 
Policy NE1: Green Space Network 
The City Council will protect, promote and enhance the wildlife, recreational, 
landscape and access value of the Green Space Network. Proposals for 
development that are likely to destroy or erode the character or function of the 
Green Space Network will not be permitted. 
 
Policy NE5: Trees and Woodlands 
There is a presumption against all activities and development that would result in 
the loss of or damage to established trees and woodlands that contribute 
significantly to nature conservation, landscape character or local amenity. 
Appropriate measures should be taken for the protection and long-term 
management of existing trees and new planting, both during and after 
construction. Buildings and services should be sited so as to minimise adverse 
impacts on existing and future trees and tree cover. 
 
Policy NE8: Natural Heritage 
Sets out the policy position as regards protected species and designated sites. 
Development that, taking into account any proposed mitigation measures, has an 
adverse effect on a protected species will only be permitted where it satisfies the 
relevant criteria in Scottish Planning Policy. This policy also sets out the 
requirement for surveys to be provided where development may have an adverse 
effect on a protected species. 
 
Policy R7: Low and Zero Carbon Buildings 
All new buildings, in meeting building regulations energy requirements, must 
install low and zero carbon generating technologies to reduce the predicted 
carbon dioxide emissions by at least 15% below the 2007 building standards. 
This percentage requirement will be increased as specified in Supplementary 
Guidance. 
 
Supplementary Guidance 
‘Low and Zero Carbon Buildings’; ‘Trees and Woodlands’; ‘Transport and 
Accessibility’ and ‘Sub-division and Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages’ 
documents are of relevance. 
 
Other Relevant Material Considerations 
The matters raised in representations are material to the assessment of this 
application, only so far as they relate to legitimate planning considerations. 
 
 
 Page 128



EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Zoning / Land Release & Principle of Development 
The application site is allocated for residential development in the Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan, having been identified through the plan preparation 
process as being capable of accommodating a notional allocation of 5no 
dwellings. It is noted that the allocation figures are notional, based a broad 
estimate of the development potential of a site based on its area, and the stated 
allocation should not be taken to preclude a development for a greater number of 
units where it can be demonstrated that such development is otherwise accords 
with the provisions of the development plan. Policy LR1 sets out that Phase 1 
housing allocations such as this will be approved in principle within areas 
designated for housing, and that development on or near an allocated site that 
would prejudice the full delivery of that allocation will not be permitted. In this 
instance, the application proposes delivery of the full allocation, and so there is 
no conflict with policy land release policy as expressed in policy LR1 of the 
ALDP. 
 
Housing and employment development on sites allocated in Phase 1 will be 
approved in principle within areas designated for housing or employment. 
Development on an allocated site or in close proximity to an allocation that 
jeopardises the full provision of that allocation will be refused. Having been 
allocated for residential development, the principle of development of this type is 
established, and this application should be considered on the basis of the form in 
which that residential development is proposed.  
 
Existing Trees and Green Space Network Designation 
It is noted that the application site features a significant number of established 
trees, and that the proposed development will require the removal of some of 
those trees. A total of 232 trees were surveyed and recorded within the 
supporting tree report, of which 29 trees are identified for removal. None of those 
29 trees is identified for removal directly as a result of the development proposal, 
with all 29 being identified for removal due to their existing condition and for 
woodland management reasons. This has been accepted by the Council’s 
Arboricultural Planner, who is confident that the removals proposed would not 
adversely affect the wooded character of this part of the site. On visiting the site, 
the Council’s Aboricultural Planner noted that there appeared to have been a 
number of trees recently removed. On this basis, the replacement planting 
proposed is not considered to be sufficient, and should be enhanced to reflect 
those trees removed prior to submission of the planning application. An 
appropriate scheme of replacement planting, to the satisfaction of the planning 
authority, can be secured via an appropriate condition in the event of approval. 
 
Parts of the woodland around the edges of the application site are included within 
the Council’s designated Green Space Network. It is noted, however, that the  
 
 

Page 129



existing house and its formal garden, along with much of the space to the south, 
are not included in that designation. As noted above, there are no existing trees 
to be lost as a direct result of the proposed development. With the proposed 
development being centred on the footprint of the existing house and garden, any 
overlap with the Green Space Network would be minimal, and would be restricted 
to its subdivision for the formation of individual residential plots. On this basis, it 
is concluded that the proposed development would not represent any material 
threat to the character or function of the Green Space Network. 
 
Protected Species 
Given the woodland nature of the site, which provides good habitat for bats, a 
European Protected Species, it was necessary for the applicant to provide a bat 
survey in order to ascertain whether bats or their roosts were present on the site. 
The submitted survey demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Council’s 
Environmental Planner that there was no evidence of bats using the building. In 
this regard, the proposal is not considered to result in any adverse impact on a 
protected species, and therefore accords with policy NE8 (Natural Heritage) of 
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 
 
Roads & Access 
The proposed access arrangements have been arrived at following liaison with 
the Council’s Roads Projects Team, who have stated their satisfaction with the 
arrangements proposed, provided that appropriate visibility can be maintained at 
the access onto North Deeside Road. A design showing an acceptable access 
has been provided, and it will be necessary to ensure that the access is provided 
prior to any occupation of the dwellinghouses proposed, in order to ensure that a 
safe access is in place to serve the development. Appropriate levels of car 
parking have been provided to serve the development, in accordance with policy 
T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) of the ALDP and the 
associated ‘Transport and Accessibility’ supplementary guidance. 
 
Planning Gain & Affordable Housing 
The proposed development has been subject to assessment by the Aberdeen 
City and Aberdeenshire Developer Contributions Team, with contributions 
payable as noted in the ‘Consultations’ section of this report, above. The 
applicants are aware of this requirement, and have intimated their agreement to 
enter into an appropriate agreement under section 75 of the planning act to 
regulate payment of those monies. 
 
Design, Density & Quality of Environment 
The proposed new dwellings are large, detached houses, set within generous 
plots in a semi-woodland setting. In this regard, the proposal relflects the 
character of the surrounding community, which is characterised by large 
detached dwellings of this nature. The application site is located towards the 
western periphery of the Milltimber settlement, with the land immediately to the 
west, between Milltimber and Peterculter, zoned as green belt. It is noted that 
there is considerable variety in the wider area in terms of architectural style, 
including both traditional granite properties such as those seen along North 
Deeside Road and at Edgehill Cottage, to the north, along with more modern 
house types such as those seen immediately to the south and west of the  
 
 

Page 130



application site. The use of vernacular material such as natural slate, timber 
windows and natural granite help to establish the relationship between the 
development and its surroundings. The proportions and styling are consistent 
across the six houses, and it is noted that the approach taken and materials used 
closely match those used in planning application P110038, which was granted 
planning permission for the construction of a new house in place of the existing 
Edgehill Lodge, to the south-east of the application site, adjacent to the access 
onto North Deeside Road. This consistent approach is welcomed, and helps to 
establish a distinct identity for this small pocket of Milltimber. The hipped-roof 
design of the dwellings is commonly seen in the surrounding area, while the 
principal elevations present a regular form and symmetry in detailing which is 
considered to make a positive contribution to the setting of these new buildings. 
In an area with no direct street frontage, and where dwellings are commonly set 
within large, well screened plots, there is no necessity to slavishly replicate the 
styling of an adjacent dwelling. As a standalone development site which will not 
be readily perceived from North Deeside Road, the proposed dwellings are 
considered to demonstrate due regard for their context and make a positive 
contribution to their setting, as required by policy D1 (Architecture and 
Placemaking) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. The proposal also 
demonstrates due accordance with the general principles set out in the Council’s 
published supplementary guidance entitled ‘The Sub-division and redevelopment 
of Residential Curtilages’. 
 
The density of the development is broadly consistent with the allocation of the 
OP61 site for a development of 5 homes, involving the replacement of one 
existing house and the construction of 5 additional dwellings. The low-density 
character of the development reflect the character of the area, which is 
characterised by large detached dwellings in large plots, and is in part driven by 
requirements to retain existing trees so far as is possible on the site, which is 
heavily wooded in parts, particularly along its boundaries. This density of 
development is considered to be appropriate to this site, in accordance with 
policy H3 of the ALDP. The minimum density target of 30 dwellings per hectare 
specified in policy H3 cannot readily be achieved on a site such as this, as it 
would risk threatening the woodland character of the site and fundamentally 
altering the character of the area by introducing a high density form of 
development in an area where it would appear incongruous. It is therefore 
concluded that the proposal demonstrates due regard for the terms of policy H3.  
 
The generous plots, distance between the new dwellings and those present on 
adjacent site, and screening provided by existing tree cover are such that the 
proposed development would not raise any material concerns regarding direct 
impact on privacy and amenity afforded to residents of adjacent dwellings. The 
new dwellings would not have a direct street frontage onto North Deeside Road, 
however it is acknowledged that this is not possible on this particular site. In any 
case, the newly created shared access road, taken off the existing drveway at the 
centre of the site, would form the focal point of the development and each of the 
new dwellings would front onto this in the same manner as a street frontage. 
Each of the dwellings would benefit from extensive garden grounds, and would 
be afforded ample outdoor amenity space within a pleasant woodland setting.  
 
 

Page 131



Car parking associated with the development would not serve to dominate the 
site, and its woodland setting would be retained, creating a desirable residential 
environment for prospective residents. 
 
Policy R7 (Low and Zero Carbon Buildings) and Associated Supplementary 
Guidance 
The application does not include any details to demonstrate how Low and Zero 
Carbon Generating Technologies will be incorporated into the dwellings, or 
alternatively how the buildings could achieve deemed compliance with the 
Council’s published ‘Low and Zero Carbon Buildings’ supplementary guidance. 
On this basis, it will be necessary to attach an appropriate condition to secure 
such information in the event that the application is to be approved. 
 
Matters raised in representations 
It should be highlighted that the site’s former designation as green belt is of no 
relevance to determination of this application, which should focus on how the 
development proposal relates to the current development plan, in which the site 
is allocated for residential development. Any increase to overall housing density 
in the area would be minimal, with the generous plots of the new dwellings 
appropriately reflecting their surroundings and the densities commonly seen on 
comparable sites in the surrounding area. The site’s contribution to the landscape 
setting of this part of Aberdeen is acknowledged in this report, and it is concluded 
that the woodland character of the site and its landscape setting value would not 
be compromised by the development, which is sited in such a way as to avoid 
any material tree removals. 
 
It should be noted that, while a new access is to be created, this would act as the 
only vehicular access to the development, with other existing accesses being 
closed to vehicular traffic. This has been agreed with the Council’s Road Projects 
Team, with acceptable visibility being demonstrated at the new junction. An 
existing bus stop on the north side of North Deeside Road would require to be re-
sited in order to allow the necessary visibility, but this can be readily achieved 
through use of a condition attached to any grant of planning permission. 
 
As noted earlier in this report, that the site is allocated for 5 dwellings in the 
ALDP should be seen as notional and indicative, and it is entirely appropriate to 
consider any proposal on its own merits based on what a given site can readily 
accommodate. In this instance, the proposal maintains the character of the 
surrounding area, with large detached houses set within generous plots in a 
semi-woodland environment. That the number of dwellings proposed exceeds 
that which the site is allocated for should not in isolation be seen as grounds for 
refusal of the application. Members may wish to consider also that making 
efficient use of the available land within and immediately adjacent to our existing 
settlements assists in maintaning a sustainable settlement pattern and avoiding 
urban sprawl. It is not considered necessary to restrict the means by which 
construction traffic may access the site, and it is questionable if this is a 
legitimate course of action, given that the site can presently be accessed by any 
vehicular traffic via North Deeside Road using the public road. 
 
 
 
 
 Page 132



The statement made regarding the presence of a Tree Protection Order (sic) is 
not correct. There is no formal protection for the existing trees on this site, 
however the planning authority has a duty to ensure, whenever appropriate, that 
in graniting planning for any development adequate provision is made, by the 
imposition of conditions, for the preservation or planting of trees. Appropriate 
conditions can require tree protection measures to be implemented during the 
construction phase, require replacement planting in mitigation for any trees 
removed, and to ensure that the developer is obliged to inform the authority of 
any additional tree works which may appear to become necessary during the 
construction phase. The making of any new Tree Preservation Order (TPO) is not 
a matter to be considered in assessment of this planning application, and utilises 
separate powers afforded to the planning authority. It is for members to decide if 
they wish to undertake a site visit if they deem it necessary. 
 
Objection is stated to a number of trees being retained, based on their existing 
impact on adjacent properties and the amenity of those residing there. This is not 
relevant to the planning authority’s consideration of the impact of the current 
development proposal, and will not be addressed further in this report. Culter 
Community Council, whose area does not include the application site, make 
reference to the development contravening the City Council’s presumption 
against feu splitting, however there is no such presumption. The City Council has 
published supplementary guidance on this topic, entitled ‘The Sub-division and 
Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages’, which sets out a series of principles to 
guide development of that nature. It is by no means accurate to say that there is 
a general presumption against such development, but rather than any such 
proposals must demonstrate accordance with the guidance contained in the 
aforementioned document.  
 
Summary  
In summary, the proposed development relates to a site allocated in the current 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan for a residential development of 5 houses 
within the first phase of the plan. The proposal is therefore consistent with the 
zoning of the site in the ALDP. The density of the development is consistent with 
the surrounding area, and is guided by the presence of existing trees within the 
site. Appropriate access has been agreed with the Council’s Roads Projects 
Team, with conditions required to ensure that the new access to serve the 
development is implemented in advance of occupation of any new dwelling. The 
design and form of the development, and its relationship with its surroundings, 
are considered to accord with the general principles set out in the Council’s 
supplementary guidance relating to the splitting of residential curtilages. The 
impact of the development on existing infrastructure and services can be 
appropriately mitigated through developer contributions in accordance with the 
Council’s published supplementary guidance on the topic, the payment of which 
can be controlled via a section 75 planning agreement. Compliance with the 
Council’s Affordable Housing policy can be secured via the same means, with a 
commuted sum having been agreed in consultation with the Council’s Developer 
Contributions Team. A bat survey has established that there is no evidence of bat 
activity on the site, as required by policy NE8 of the ALDP. Similarly, a tree 
survey has established the level of tree removal involved, which has been 
accepted by the Council’s Arboricultural Planner. The extent of replacement  
 
 

Page 133



planting is currently insufficient, however additional planting can be secured via 
the use of an appropriate condition attached to any consent granted. The 
proposal is not considered to have any adverse impact on the character or 
function of the Green Space Network. Taking these matters into account, it is 
concluded that the proposal demonstrates accordance with the relevant 
provisions of the development plan, and that no material considerations have 
have been identified that are of sufficient weight to warrant determination other 
than in accordance with that plan. It is therefore recommended that members 
express a willingness to approve this application subject to the following 
conditions, and subject also to the satisfactory conclusion of a legal agreement 
controlling the payment of developer contributions and a commuted sum in 
relation to affordable housing provision, as determined following consultation with 
the Council’s Developer Contributions team. The consent document shall not be 
issued until such time as an agreement to that effect has been concluded and 
appropriately registered against the land. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Willingness to approve subject to conditions, with consent being withheld 
pending satisfactory conclusion of a planning agreement relating to the 
payment of monies in connection with developer contributions and 
affordable housing provision 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed development is consistent with its residential zoning and its 
opportunity site designation in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP), 
and provides an appropriate design, scale and form of development, in 
accordance with policies H1 (Residential Areas) and D2 (Design and Amenity) of 
the ALDP and the associates supplementary guidance document in relation to 
the Sub-division and Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages. The Green Space 
Network designation which applies to the site would not be adversely affected by 
the proposed development, and the development has been proposed in such a 
way as to avoid any significant impact on the existing trees and woodlands, in 
compliance with policies NE1 (Green Space Network) and NE5 (Trees and 
Woodlands) of the ALDP. An appropriate form of development is proposed, and 
supporting surveys indicate that there would be no resultant adverse impact on 
bats, a European Protected Species, in accordance with polices H3 (Density) and 
NE8 (Natural Heritage). The individual and cumulative impacts of the 
development identified through consultation with the Council’s developer 
contributions team can may be adequately mitigated through the payment of 
contributions calculated in accordance with the Council’s published Infrastructure 
and Developer Contributions Manual.  
 
CONDITIONS 
 
it is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
 (1)  That no development shall be undertaken until such time as the existing bus 
stop on North Deeside Road has been relocated in accordance with drawing 
96035/1001, or any other such drawing as submitted to and approved in writing  
 

Page 134



by the planning authority for this purpose - in the interests of safeguarding road 
safety by making provision for appropriate visibility at the main site access 
to/from North Deeside Road. 
 
(2)  that no development shall take place unless a scheme of all drainage works 
designed to meet the requirements of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and 
thereafter no part of the development shall be occupied unless the drainage has 
been installed in complete accordance with the said scheme - in order to 
safeguard water qualities in adjacent watercourses and to ensure that the 
development can be adequately drained. 
 
(3)  that no development pursuant to this planning permission shall take place, 
nor shall any part of the development hereby approved be occupied, unless there 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority, a 
detailed scheme of site and plot boundary enclosures for the entire development 
hereby granted planning permission. None of the buildings hereby granted 
planning permission shall be occupied unless the said scheme has been 
implemented in its entirety - in order to preserve the amenity of the 
neighbourhood. 
 
(4)  that no development shall take place unless a scheme detailing all external 
finishing materials to the roof and walls of the development hereby approved has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the planning authority and 
thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details so 
agreed - in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
(5)  that no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved 
shall be carried out unless there has been submitted to and approved in writing 
for the purpose by the planning authority a further detailed scheme of 
landscaping for the site, which scheme shall include indications of all existing 
trees and landscaped areas on the land, and details of any to be retained, 
together with measures for their protection in the course of development, and the 
proposed areas of tree/shrub planting including details of numbers, densities, 
locations,  species, sizes and stage of maturity at planting - in the interests of the 
amenity of the area. 
 
(6)  that all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved scheme of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following the 
completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be planted, or 
in accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and approved in 
writing for the purpose by the planning authority - in the interests of the amenity 
of the area. 
 
(7)  that no development shall take place unless a plan showing those trees to be 
removed and those to be retained and a scheme for the protection of all trees to 
be retained on the site during construction works has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Planning Authority and any such scheme as may have  
 

Page 135



been approved has been implemented - in order to ensure adequate protection 
for the trees on site during the construction of the development. 
 
(8)  that any tree work which appears to become necessary during the 
implementation of the development shall not be undertaken without the prior 
written consent of the Planning Authority; any damage caused to trees growing 
on the site shall be remedied in accordance with British Standard 3998: 2010 
"Recommendations for Tree Work" before the building hereby approved is first 
occupied - in order to preserve the character and visual amenity of the area. 
 
(9)  that no materials, supplies, plant, machinery, spoil, changes in ground levels 
or construction activities shall be permitted within the protected areas specified in 
the aforementioned scheme of tree protection without the written consent of the 
Planning Authority and no fire shall be lit in a position where the flames could 
extend to within 5 metres of foliage, branches or trunks - in order to ensure 
adequate protection for the trees on site during the construction of the 
development. 
 
(10)  that the dwellinghouse hereby approved shall not be occupied unless 
provision has been made within the site for the off-street parking of motor 
vehicles in complete accordance with Plan No. 1796-EHD-P03 or such other 
scheme as may be subsequently approved in writing by the planning authority - 
in the interests of road safety, the free flow of traffic and visual amenity. 
 
(11)  That the dwellings hereby granted planning permission shall be occupied 
unless provision has been made within the application site for refuse storage and 
disposal in accordance with a scheme which has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority - in order to preserve the amenity of 
the neighbourhood and in the interests of public health. 
 
(12)  that the dwellings hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a scheme 
detailing compliance with the Council's 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings' 
supplementary guidance has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
planning authority, and any recommended measures specified within that 
scheme for the reduction of carbon emissions have been implemented in full - to 
ensure that this development complies with requirements for reductions in carbon 
emissions pecified in the City Council's relevant published Supplementary 
Guidance document, 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings'. 
 
  

Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150


	Agenda
	1 Hopetoun Grange, Land to North of Bucksburn - Proposed development for No.65 residential houses including infrastructure and landscaping
	Hopetoun Grange, Land to North of Bucksburn - Letters

	2 Land adjacent to North Deeside Road, Pittengullies Brae - Erection of 32No. unit residential development with ancillary site works and landscaping
	Pittengullies Brae 130230

	3 Land adjacent to North Deeside Road, Pittengullies Brae - Erection of 8No. unit residential development with ancillary site works and landscaping
	Pittengullies Brae 130229

	4 Edgehill House, North Deeside Road, Milltimber - Replacement of existing house and construction of 5No. additional dwellings with associated infrastructure, improved accesses and tree protection works
	Edgehill House, North Deeside Road - Letters


